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Entry 1 School Information and Cover Page
(New schools that were not open for instruction for
the 2018-19 school year are not required to complete

or submit an annual report this year).
Created: 07/31/2019 -« Last updated: 08/02/2019

Please be advised that you will need to complete this cover page (including signatures) before all of the
other tasks assigned to you by your authorizer are visible on your task page. While completing this cover
page task, please ensure that you select the correct authorizer (as of June 30, 2019) or you may not be
assigned the correct tasks.

BASIC INFORMATION

a. SCHOOL NAME DEMOCRACY PREP ENDURANCE CHARTER SCHOOL

(Select name from the drop down menu)

al. Popular School Name (No response)
(Optional)

b. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of Regents Authorized Charter School
June 30th, 2019)

Please select the correct authorizer as of
June 30, 2019 or you may not be
assigned the correct tasks.

c. DISTRICT / CSD OF LOCATION NYC CSD 5

d. DATE OF INITIAL CHARTER 12/2010
e. DATE FIRST OPENED FOR 08/2012
INSTRUCTION
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f. APPROVED SCHOOL MISSION (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized
schools only)

MISSION STATEMENT

The mission of Democracy Prep Endurance Charter School is to educate responsible citizen scholars for
success in the college of their choice and a life of active citizenship.

g. KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools

only)

KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Brief heading followed by a description of each Key Design Elements
(KDE). KDEs are those general aspects of the school that are innovative or unique to the school’s
mission and goals, are core to the school’s overall design, and are critical to its success. The
design elements may include a specific content area focus; unique student populations to be
served; specific educational programs or pedagogical approaches; unique calendar, schedule, or
configurations of students and staff; and/or innovative organizational structures and systems.

Variable 1 Rigorous college prep academics. Democracy Prep operates
academically rigorous college preparatory campuses. All
DPPS scholars study two hours of math, three hours of
literacy, one hour of science, and one hour of social studies
every day as well as art, theater, music, health, and physical
education. In DPPS high schools, Korean language, speech
and debate, a cappella music, and AP courses are offered to
all students. This content rich curriculum provides the basic
knowledge that makes students more effective learners later
in their academic careers.

Variable 2 More time to learn. By lengthening the school day and
calendar year, DPPS provides extended literacy and math
instructional blocks while building content rich courses in
music, speech, debate, art, physical education, design, and
Korean into the regular academic program. The school year
includes approximately 190 days of instruction, and students
in need of additional individual support or required
remediation receive after dismissal tutoring and attend
school on additional Saturdays.

Variable 3 Data driven decision making. DPPS relies on a sophisticated
feedback loop of frequent data collection and analysis
including a network wide dashboard tool, interim
assessments, and comparative academic measures to drive
effective instruction at the student, class, teacher, grade,
school, and network levels. DPPS utilizes student level data
(including nationally normed assessments and individually
administered reading inventories) to inform all decisions
around instruction, staffing, and spending.

Variable 4 Safe and supportive school culture. Democracy Prep is
founded on the belief that a safe, structured, and supportive
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Variable 5

Variable 6

Variable 7

Variable 8
Variable 9

Variable 10

Need additional space for

variables

h. SCHOOL WEB ADDRESS (URL)

school community is essential to ensure dramatic academic
gains for all students. School culture is based on the “DREAM
Values”: Discipline, Respect, Enthusiasm, Accountability, and
Maturity. DPPS focuses relentlessly on school culture and
maintains high expectations, not just for our students, but
also for the adults charged with creating and maintaining
high standards.

Exemplary talent. Democracy Prep has an extremely
selective staff application process. Lead teachers receive a
base salary that exceeds the local scale and are eligible for
performance based raises and benefits designed to
incentivize excellence and longevity. All staff members
receive weekly professional development (PD) during the
school year and are afforded ample opportunities for growth.

Educating all students, in all subjects, in all grades. DPPS
actively recruits students at risk of academic failure
including those with ELL classifications, IEPs, and 504 plans

and consistently enrolls students in high need subgroups
in numbers greater than or equal to those of zoned public
schools located in the surrounding districts. Special
Education students and ELL students (i.e. students
supported by DPPS’s Academic Collaboration Team, or “ACT
students”) benefit from the same transformational education
and support that all students receive, including all elective
offerings. In many charter schools, students who exit
through natural attrition are not replaced through a policy of
“backfill.” By contrast, DPPS welcomes new students at
virtually all grade levels each year.

Authentic civic leadership and engagement. Unique among
its peers, DPPS places an explicit focus on preparing
students to become civic leaders. Through civic initiatives,
community engagement, and authentic student and family
advocacy, DPPS reminds educators, policymakers, and all
Americans that the founding purpose of public education was
to prepare our nation’s youth for self government in our
democracy, and that restoring the civic mission of education
must be a national priority.

(No response)
(No response)

(No response)

No

http://dpems.democracyprep.org/
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i. TOTAL MAX APPROVED 972
ENROLLMENT FOR THE 2018-19
SCHOOL YEAR (exclude Pre-K

program enrollment)

j. TOTAL STUDENT ENROLLMENT 603
ON JUNE 30, 2019 (exclude Pre-K

program enrollment)

k. GRADES SERVED IN SCHOOL YEAR 2018-19 (does not include Pre-K program

students)
Check all that apply

Grades Served 6,7,8,9, 10, 11, 12
11. DOES THE SCHOOL CONTRACT Yes
WITH A CHARTER OR

EDUCATIONAL MANAGEMENT
ORGANIZATION?

12. NAME OF CMO/EMO AND ADDRESS

NAME OF CMO/EMO Democracy Prep Public Schools
PHYSICAL STREET ADDRESS 1767 Park Avenue, 5th Floor
CITYy New York

STATE NY

ZIP CODE 10035

CONTACT PERSON NAME Kent Anker

FACILITIES INFORMATION

m. FACILITIES
Will the school maintain or operate multiple sites in 2019-207

Yes, 2 sites

4/9



School Site 1 (Primary)

ml. SCHOOL SITES
Please provide information on Site 1 for the upcoming school year.

Site 1

Physical Address

240 E 123rd St
New York, NY
10035

Phone Number District/CSD

646 490 3693 NYC CSD 4

Grades to be
Served at Site
for coming year
(K5, 609, etc.)

912

Receives Rental
Assistance for
Which Grades (If
yes, enter the
appropriate
grades. If no,
enter No).

912

m1la. Please provide the contact information for Site 1.

Work Phone

Email Address

Name Alternate Phone

School

Leader Emmanuel George

Operati
onal
Leader

Nina Minogue

Complia
nce Kent Anker
Contact

Complai
nt Kent Anker
Contact

DASA
Coordin
ator

Emmanuel George

Phone
Contact
for After
Hours
Emerge
ncies

Ken Mason

m1lb. Is site 1 in public (co- Private Space
located) space or in private

space?
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IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC

mld. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection

Report for school site 1 if located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC .

Site 1 Certificate of Occupancy (COO)

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/110373984/yFPTXS6fVy/

Site 1 Fire Inspection Report

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/110373984/nBJtmgxAKU/

School Site 2

m2. SCHOOL SITES
Please provide information on Site 2 for the upcoming school year.

Site 2

Physical Address

250 W 127th St
New York, NY
10027

Phone Number

212 316 7602

District/CSD

NYC CSD 5

6/9

Grades to be
Served at Site
for coming year
(K5,609, etc.)

68

Receives Rental
Assistance for
Which Grades (If
yes, enter the
appropriate
grades. If no,
enter No).

No



m2a. Please provide the contact information for Site 2.

Name Work Phone Alternate Phone Email Address

School

Leader Katherine Perez

Operati
onal Ken Francis
Leader

Complia
nce Kent Anker
Contact

Complai
nt Kent Anker
Contact

DASA
Coordin Katherine Perez
ator

Phone

Contact

for After Ken Mason
Hours

Emerge

ncies

m2b. Is site 2 in public (co- Co located Space
located) space or in private

space?

m2c. Please list the terms of your current co-location.

Date school Is school If so, list year Is school If so, list the School at Full
will leave working with  expansion working with  proposed Capacity at
current co NYCDOE to will occur. NYCDOE to space and Site
location expand into move to year planned
current separate for move
space? space?
Site 2 Pgrmanent No No Yes
Siting

CHARTER REVISIONS DURING THE 2018-19 SCHOOL YEAR
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nl. Were there any revisions to No
the school’s charter during the
2018-19 school year? (Please
include approved or pending
material and non-material

charter revisions).

ATTESTATION

o. Individual Primarily Responsible for Submitting the Annual Report.

Name Carlos Mojica
Position Vice President, Infrastructure
Phone/Extension

Email

p. Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board
President) below attest that all of the information contained herein is truthful and
accurate and that this charter school is in compliance with all aspects of its charter,
and with all pertinent Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and rules. We
understand that if any information in any part of this report is found to have been
deliberately misrepresented, that will constitute grounds for the revocation of our
charter. Check YES if you agree and then use the mouse on your PC or the stylist on

your mobile device to sigh your name).

Yes

Signature, Head of Charter School

N /\Y\B@r\
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Signature, President of the Board of Trustees

W

Date 2019/07/31

Thank you.
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CITY OF NEW YORK
FIRE DEPARTMENT - BUREAU OF FIRE PREVENTION

| ACCOUNTNO. l D.O. | PERMIT EXPIRATION |  PAYMENT DUE I PAY THIS AMOUNT | PAY ONLINE AT
00/00/00 ON RECEIPT 630.00 PAY ON-LINE AT WWW.NYC.GOV/CITYPAY
CHECK HERE FOR ANY CHANGES IN THIS
[ ] ACCOUNT AND INDICATE CHANGES ON RETURN ONLY PREMISES E:E’Ag 11-5:? SS-,(-: FIER
REVERSE SIDE. THIS PORTION ADDRESS:
WITH YOUR NEW YORK, NY 100352050
DO NOT FOLD THIS STUB IN ENVELOPE PAYMENT TO ENSURE PROPER CREDIT TO YOUR ACCOUNT MAIL ONLY THIS PORTION

OF THE BILL WITH YOUR CHECK OR MONEY ORDER PAYABLE TO:

P23 T10 *+=====AUTO*ALL FOR AADC 100 2352
DEMOCACY PREP ENDURANCE NYC FIRE DEPARTMENT
240 E 123RD ST P.O. BOX 412014

FIRE DEPARTMENT, CITY OF NEW YORK - BUREAU OF FIRE PREVENTION

D.O. | TYPE| AP. | BILLING DATE| BILLING PERIOD BOROUGH I BLOCK I

FOR INFORMATION CALL: = | SUB IQTY'l

(718) 999-2411  mnobrm

THIS BILL

IS PAYABLE
UPON RECEIPT

SAFETY INSPECTION

CHARTER SCHOOL

PREVISES 240 E 123 ST
ANNUAL FEE 210.00 " NEW YORK, NY 100352050

*BILL INCLUDES REINSPECTION CHARGE*
** LATE PAYMENTS WILL INCUR FINES *

PAST DUE 630.00

*+ REINSPECTION BILL *** AMOUNT DUE b B3 630.00

YOU WILL BE SUBJECT TO INSPECTIONS PERFORMED BY NEW YORK CITY INSPECTORS. IT IS IMPORTANT TO
THE HEALTH AND SAFETY OF ALL PEOPLE OF THIS CITY, THAT THESE INSPECTIONS BE CONDUCTED PROPERLY
AND FAIRLY.

YOU MUST NOT PAY ANY MONEY TO, OR OFFER ANY GIFT TO AN INSPECTOR AT ANY TIME. AN INSPECTOR MAY
NOTDEMAND, MAKE SUGGESTIONS, ORTAKEANYTHING FROM YOU.

BOTH YOU AND THE INSPECTOR FACE SERIOUS CRIMINAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE PUNISHMENTS, IF BRIBERY OR
GIFT GIVING TAKES PLACE.

IF YOU OFFER MONEY OR A GIFT TO AN INSPECTOR, THE INSPECTOR WILL REPORT THIS FOR ACTION TO BE
TAKEN AGAINST YOU. IF AN INSPECTORASKS FORABRIBE OR GIFT, YOU MUST REPORT THIS TO THE OFFICE OF
INSPECTOR GENERAL, AT 80 MAIDEN LANE, 19TH FLOOR, NEW YORK, N.Y. 10038 TEL: (212) 825-2402.
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PAGE 1 OF 2 PAGES

{BUILDING CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY

sob Number A2 [
Borought MANHATTAN Date: AUG 12 200 No: -___
Tis certftcnie superesded €.0, NN ... ZONTNG DISTRICT C1-4

"This cortifies that the now-altozd-exlsiing-butlding-presdses locnted at
230 EAST 123RD STREET

Block: 1767 Lor 80
CORVORMS SUBSTANTIALLY 10 TH1I: APPROVEU LLAN AND SPECIFICATIONS ANDTO THE REQUIREMENTS OV Akl APPLICADLE LAWS.
TLU1 365, ANTY RECIULATIONS FORTIIE USKH AND OCCUPARCIRS SOECHIER RLIN,

PERMISSIBLE USE AND OCCUPANCY
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HUMAN RESOVRCES,
BEMINAR ROOH,
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DISCUBSION AND
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MECHANICAL ROOM

{CONTINVED)

OPEN SPACE USES
STRCTIV-PARRING STACES, LOADING HERTIS, OTHER USLS, RONE)

NO CHANGES OF USE OR OCCUPANCY SHALL D% MADE UNLESS
cﬁ\ NEW AMENDED CERTIFICATE OF OCCU S OBTAINED .. .. «;we e
TS uilé {CATE OF ox& ;’qii 18 [$8U0ID SUBJLCY 'rcf FURTHER LIMISATIONS, CONDITIONS AND SILCIFICATIONS *
i
\ g /
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Entry 2 NYS School Report Card Link

Last updated: 07/31/2019

DEMOCRACY PREP ENDURANCE CHARTER SCHOOL

1. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of REGENTS Authorized Charter School
June 30th, 2019)
(For technical reasons, please re select

authorizer name from the drop down
menu).

2. NEW YORK STATE REPORT https://data.nysed.qgov/profile.php?instid=800000070174
CARD

Provide a direct URL or web link
to the most recent New York
State School Report Card for the
charter school (See
https://reportcards.nysed.govy/).
(Charter schools completing year
one will not yet have a School
Report Card or link to one. Please

type "URL is not available" in the
space provided.)
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Entry 3 Progress Toward Goals
Created: 10/31/2019 - Last updated: 11/01/2019

25|

PROGRESS TOWARD CHARTER GOALS

Board of Regents authorized and NYCDOE authorized charter schools only. Complete the tables provided.
List each goal and measure as contained in the school’s currently approved charter, and indicate whether

the school has met or not met the goal. Please provide information for all goals by November 1st.

1. ACADEMIC STUDENT PERFORMANCE GOALS

If performance data is not available by August 1st, please state this in the last column and update by

November 1st.

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals

Academic Student Measure Used to Goal Met or Not Met Indicate if data is not
Performance Goal Evaluate Progress available. If/when
Toward Attainment of available, Describe
Goal Efforts School Will
Take If Goal Is Not
Met
Each year, the
percent of students
performing at or
above level 3 on the Measured by an
NY State ELA Exam in :
Academ analysis of
. each tested grade
ic Goal o o performance of CSD Met
will, in the majority of
1 5 conducted by the
grades, exceed the NYC DOE
average performance '
of students tested in
the same grades of
CSD 5.
Each year, the
percent of students
performing at or
above level 3 on the
NY State Math exam | Measured by an
Academ each tested grade analysis of
ic Goal will, in the majority of performance of CSD Met
2 ' 5 conducted by the

grades, exceed the
average performance
of students tested in
the same grades of
CSD 5.

NYC DOE

1/10

Goal not met 40%
of the listed



Academ
ic Goal
3

Academ
ic Goal
4

Academ
ic Goal
5

Each year, 75% of
6th 8th graders who
have been at the
school on BEDS day
for at least two
consecutive years
will perform at or
above level 3 on the
NY State ELA Exam

Each year, 75% of
6th 8th graders who
have been at the
school on BEDS day
for at least two
consecutive years
will perform at or
above level 3 on the
NY State Math exam

Each year, 75% of
8th graders who
have been at the
school on BEDS day
for at least two
consecutive years
will perform at or
above level 3 on the
NY State Science

NYSED: State ELA

Not Met
Exam
NYSED: State Math Not Met
Exam
NYSED: State Science

Met

Exam

2/10

population performed
at a level 3 or above.

Charter Management
Organization
Democracy Prep
Public Schools has
expanded its team of
Assistant
Superintendents.
These administrators
are seasoned
instructional leaders
who will provide
coaching to principals
among other
activities to support
the academic
performance of the
school.

Goal not met 39%
of the listed
population performed
at a level 3 or above.

Charter Management
Organization
Democracy Prep
Public Schools has
expanded its team of
Assistant
Superintendents.
These administrators
are seasoned
instructional leaders
who will provide
coaching to principals
among other
activities to support
the academic
performance of the
school.



Academ
ic Goal
6

Academ
ic Goal
7

Academ
ic Goal
8

Academ
ic Goal
9

exam

Each year, grade
level cohorts of the
same students (i.e.,
students who are in
the school for two
years in a row) will
reduce by one half
the gap between the
percent at or above
Level 3 on the
previous year’s State
ELA exam and 75%
at or above Level 3
on the current year’s
state ELA exam

Each year, grade
level cohorts of the
same students (i.e.,
students who are in
the school for two
years in a row) will
reduce by one half
the gap between the
percent at or above
level 3 on the
previous year's state
math exam and 75%
at or above level 3
on the current year’s
state math exam

Each year, 75% of
students enrolled in
grades 9 12 will
accumulate 10 or
more credits toward
graduation

Each year, at least
75%o0f students in
the high school
accountability cohort
passing an English
Regents Exam will
have a score of 75 or
above by the end of
their fourth year.

NYSED: State ELA

Exam

NYSED: State Math

Exam

Internal academic

data

NY State Regents

Exam

3/10

Not Met

Not Met

Met

Met

Charter Management
Organization
Democracy Prep
Public Schools has
expanded its team of
Assistant
Superintendents.
These administrators
are seasoned
instructional leaders
who will provide
coaching to principals
among other
activities to support
the academic
performance of the
school.

Charter Management
Organization
Democracy Prep
Public Schools has
expanded its team of
Assistant
Superintendents.
These administrators
are seasoned
instructional leaders
who will provide
coaching to principals
among other
activities to support
the academic
performance of the
school.



Academ
ic Goal
10

Each year, at least
75% of students in
the high school
accountability cohort
passing a Math
Regents exam will
have a score of 75 or
above by the end of
their fourth year

NY State Regents
Exam

2. Do have more academic goals Yes

to add?

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals

Academ
ic Goal
11

Academ
ic Goal
12

Academ
ic Goal
13

Academic Student Measure Used to
Performance Goal Evaluate Progress

Toward Attainment of

Goal

Each year, at least
75% of students in
the high school
accountability cohort
passing a Science
Regents exam will
have a score of 75 or
above by the end of
their fourth year

NY State Regents
Exam

Each year, at least
75% of students in
the high school
accountability cohort
passing a History
Regents Exam will
have a score of 75 or
above by their fourth
year

NY State Regents
Exam

Each year, the

average performance

of students in the

10th grade will

exceed the state PSAT
average on the PSAT

tests in Critical

Reading and

Mathematics

4/10

Met

Goal Met or Not Met

Met

Met

Not Met

If Not Met, Describe
Efforts School Will
Take

Democracy Prep
Public Schools is
increasing college
entrance exam
preparation courses
throughout the
network and raising
funds to extend
preparation courses
to 10th graders.



Each year, the
average performance
of students in the

Academ _
ic Goal  12th grade will SAT or ACT Met
14 exceed the state

average on the SAT

or ACT tests in

reading and

mathematics

Each year,

Democracy Prep

Endurance will
Academ perform at the 60th Internal enrollment Goal met for four
ic Goal percentile or above data and NYC DOE Met year rate. Six year
15 compared with city graduation data rate not applicable.

wide averages for its
four and six year
graduation rates

75% of students who
Academ 9raduate within 5
ic Goal years will graduate Met
16 with an Advanced

Regents Diploma

Academ
ic Goal
17

Academ
ic Goal
18

Academ
ic Goal
19

Academ
ic Goal
20

3. Do have more academic goals No
to add?

4. ORGANIZATIONAL GOALS

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Organizational Goals

Organizational Goal Measure Used to Goal Met or Not Met If Not Met, Describe
Evaluate Progress Efforts School Will

5/10



Org
Goal 1

Org
Goal 2

Org
Goal 3

Org

Democracy Prep
Endurance will
prepare students for
success in college
and a life of active
citizenship

Each year,
Democracy Prep
Endurance will
maintain a waiting
list of at least 40% of
available seats

Each year,
Democracy Prep
Endurance will have
an average daily
student attendance
rate of 95% or better

Each year,
Democracy Prep
Endurance will have

We measure our
progress based in
academic metrics,
earned visits to
colleges,
demonstration of
mastery in all areas
of Democracy Prep
curriculum, required
public service,
advocacy efforts,
summer internships,
and a College
Preparation Portfolio  Met
(CPP) required for
promotion to the high
school, among other
civic activities. The
CPP includes a
transcript, a
complete college
application with
essays, interviews,
extracurricular
activities,
recommendations,
and an honors thesis

Internal enroliment

data Met
Internal enroliment

data SIS; reported

from an attendance Not Met

tracking system
(ATS)

NYC DOE School
Survey; the school
will only have met

6/10

Take

Goal not met. ADA for
the 2018 2019 year
was 94%. At MS, it
was 95%, but at HS,
it was 92%.

DPE will review and
refine attendance
intervention process

43% of parents
participated in the
survey.

The school will
increase the number
of reminders to



Goal 4

Org
Goal 5

Org
Goal 6

Org
Goal 7

Org
Goal 8

a parent satisfaction
rate that meets or
exceeds citywide
averages

Each year,
Democracy Prep
Endurance will have
a staff satisfaction
rate that meets or
exceeds citywide
averages

Each year,
Democracy Prep
Endurance will have
a student satisfaction
rate that meets or
exceeds citywide
averages

this goal if 50% or
more parents
participate in the
survey

NYC DOE Survey; the
school will only have
met this goal if 50%
or more staff
participate in the
survey

NYC DOE School
Survey; the school
will only have met
this goal if 50% or
more students
participate in the
survey

7/10

Not Met

Not Met

Not Met

parents and add
modes of
communication such
as text reminders in
order to encourage
parents to complete
the survey.

Goal not met.
Teacher satisfaction
rate measured below
citywide averages.

The school leaders,
with the support of
Democracy Prep
Public Schools
Assistant
Superintendents, will
use the data from the
most recent NYC DOE
Survey to plan and
implement data
driven improvements
in areas in which
teachers expressed
dissatisfaction.

Goal not met.
Student satisfaction
rate measured below
city averages.

The school leaders,
with the support of
Democracy Prep
Public Schools
Assistant
Superintendents, will
use the data from the
most recent NYC DOE
Survey to plan and
implement data
driven improvements
in areas in which
students expressed
dissatisfaction.



Org
Goal 9

Org
Goal 10

Org
Goal 11

Org
Goal 12

Org
Goal 13

Org
Goal 14

Org
Goal 15

Org
Goal 16

Org
Goal 17

Org
Goal 18

Org
Goal 19

Org
Goal 20

5. Do have more organizational No
goals to add?

6. FINANCIAL GOALS
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2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Financial Goals

Financia
| Goal 1

Financia
| Goal 2

Financia
| Goal 3

Financia
| Goal 4

Financia
| Goal 5

Financial Goals

Each year,
Democracy Prep
Endurance will
operate on a
balanced budget and
maintain a stable
cash flow

Measure Used to
Evaluate Progress

Measured by results
from an external
audit

7. Do have more financial goals (No response)

to add?

Goal

Met

Met or Not Met

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Financial Goals

Financia
| Goal 6

Financia
| Goal 7

Financia
| Goal 8

Financia
| Goal 9

Financia
| Goal
10

Financial Goals

Thank you.

Measure Used to
Evaluate Progress
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Goal

Met or Not Met

If Not Met, Describe
Efforts School Will
Take

If Not Met, Describe
Efforts School Will
Take



10/10



ﬁ Entry 4 Expenditures per Child

Created: 08/02/2019 -« Last updated: 08/05/2019

DEMOCRACY PREP ENDURANCE CHARTER SCHOOLSection Heading

Financial Information

This information is required of ALL charter schools. Provide the following measures of fiscal
performance of the charter school in Appendix B (Total Expenditures and Administrative Expenditures
Per Child):

1. Total Expenditures Per Child
To calculate ‘Total Expenditures per Child’ take total expenditures (from the unaudited 2018-

19 Schedule of Functional Expenses) and divide by the year end FTE student enroliment.
(Integers Only. No dollar signs or commas).

Note: The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41-43 of the
Audit Guide can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil
calculations: Audit Guide available within the portal or on the NYSED website

at: http://www.pl2.nysed.gov/psc/regentsoversightplan/otherdocuments/auditguide2018.pdf.

Line 1: Total Expenditures 11115722
Line 2: Year End FTE student enrollment 622

Line 3: Divide Line 1 by Line 2 17871

1/2



2. Administrative Expenditures per Child
To calculate ‘Administrative Expenditures per Child' To calculate “Administrative Expenditures per

Child” first add together the following:

1. Take the relevant portion from the ‘personnel services cost’ row and the ‘management and general’
column (from the unaudited 2018 19 Schedule of Functional Expenses)

2. Any contracted administrative/management fee paid to other organizations or corporations

3. Take the total from above and divide it by the year end FTE enrollment. The relevant portion that must
be included in this calculation is defined as follows:

Administrative Expenditures: Administration and management of the charter school includes the
activities and personnel of the offices of the chief school officer, the finance or business offices, school
operations personnel, data management and reporting, human resources, technology, etc. It also
includes those administrative and management services provided by other organizations or corporations
on behalf of the charter school for which the charter school pays a fee or other compensation. Do not
include the FTE of personnel whose role is to directly support the instructional program.

Notes:
The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41-43 of the Audit Guide
can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil calculations:

http:/www.pl12.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html.

Employee benefit costs or expenditures should not be reported in the above calculations.

Line 1: Relevant Personnel Services

Cost (Row) 1135178
Line 2: Management and General Cost 2301133
(Column)

Line 3: Sum of Line 1 and Line 2 3436311
Line 5: Divide Line 3 by the Year End 5555

FTE student enrollment

Thank you.
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S PKF
OCONNOR
DAVIES

ACCOUNTANTS AND ADVISORS

Independent Auditors’ Report

Board of Trustees
Democracy Prep Endurance Charter School

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Democracy Prep Endurance
Charter School (the “School”), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June
30, 2019 and 2018, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows
for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

PKF O'CONNOR DAVIES, LLP
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528 | Tel: 914.381.8900 | Fax: 914.381.8910 | www.pkfod.com

PKF O'Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any responsibility
or liability for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms,



Board of Trustees
Democracy Prep Endurance Charter School
Page 2

Opinion

In our apinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the School as of June 30, 2019, and 2018 and the changes in its net
assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, during the year ended June 30, 2019,
Democracy Prep Endurance Charter School adopted new accounting guidance resulting in a
change in the manner in which it presents net assets and reports certain aspects of its financial
statements. Qur opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October 30, 2019, on our consideration of the School's internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisicns of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters, The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
tasting, and not f{o provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School's internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School's internal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

PUE O Crnnp, Daviss, (2P

Harrison, New York
October 30, 2019



Democracy Prep Endurance Charter School

Staternents of Financial Position

June 30,
2019 2018
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,493,136 $ 1,519,271
Grants and confracts receivable 741,162 565,540
Due from related party - 313,051
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 108,543 331,406
Total Current Assets 2,340,841 2,729,268
Property and equipment, net 546,382 652,725
Prepaid expenses, less current portion 900,000 -
Restricted cash 75,440 75,308
Security deposit 108,010 108,860
$ 3,970,673 $ 3,566,161
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 277174 $ 153,561
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 686,468 672,193
Due to related parties 565,761 273,588
Deferred rent, current portion 66,582 84,991
Capital lease obiigation 69,491 63,136
Refundable advances 47,742 18,516
Total Current Liabilities 1,713,218 1,265,985
Deferred rent 401,514 298,113
Capital lease obligation, less current portion 86,826 156,316
Total Liahilities 2,201,558 1,720,414
Net Assets
Without Donor Restrictions
Undesignated 1,622,249 1,700,141
Board-designated 135,800 135,800
Total Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions 1,758,049 1,835,941
With Donor Restrictions 11,066 9,806
Total Net Assets 1,769,115 1,845,747

3 3,970,873 $ 3,566,161

See notes to financial statements



Democracy Prep Endurance Charter School

Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2018

Without Donor With Doner
Restrictions Restrictions Total
OPERATING REVENUE
Public School District
Regular student enroilment $ 9,793,664 - $ 9,793,664
Students with disabilities 824,242 - 824,242
Facilities funding 751,825 - 751,825
Grants and Contracts
Federal E-Rate, IDEA, and Titles 486,429 - 486,429
State and local 48,442 - 48,442
Total Operating Revenue 11,904,602 - 11,804,602
EXPENSES
Program Services
Regular education 7,791,466 - 7,791,466
Special education 1,848,337 - 1,848,337
Total Program Services 9,639,803 - 9,639,803
Supporting Services
Management and general 2,360,040 - 2,360,040
Total Expenses 11,999,843 - 11,999,843
Deficit from Operations (95,241) - (95,241)
SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE
Contributions 10,075 7,500 17,675
Other income 1,034 - 1,034
Net assets released from restrictions 6,240 (6,240) -
Total Support and Other Revenue 17,349 1,260 18,609
Change in Net Assets (77,892) 1,260 (76,632)
NET ASSETS
Beginning of year 1,835,941 9,808 1,845,747
End of year $ 1,758,049 11,066 $ 1769115

See notes to financial statements




Democracy Prep Endurance Charter School

OPERATING REVENUE

Public Schoal District
Regular student enrollment
Students with disabilities
Facilities funding

Grants and Caontracts
Federal E-Rate, IDEA, and Titles
Total Operating Revenue

EXPENSES
Program Services
Regular education
Special education
Total Program Services
Supporting Services
Management and general
Total Expenses
Deficit from Operations

SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE
Contributions

Other income
Net assets released from restrictions

Total Support and Other Revenue
Change in Net Assets

NET ASSETS
Beginning of year

End of year

See notes to financial statements

Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2018

Without Donor

With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total
$ 8,352,948 % - $ 8,352,948
692,116 - 692,116
784 514 - 784,514
464 918 - 464.918
10,294,496 - 10,294,496
6,461,955 - 6,461,955
1,671,698 - 1,671,698
8,133,653 - 8,133,653
2,181,045 - 2,181,945
10,315,598 - 10,315,598
(21,102) - (21,102)
4500 7,500 12,000
9,102 - 9,102
5398 {5,398) -
19,000 2,102 21,102
(2,102) 2,102 -
1,838,043 7,704 1,845,747
$ 1,835,941 $ 9,806 $ 1,845747
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Democracy Prep Endurance Charter School

Statements of Cash Flows

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in nef assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash from operating activities
Depreciation and amortization
Loss on disposal of property and equipment
Deferred rent
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Grants and contracts receivable
Due from related parties
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Security deposit
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroli and payroll taxes
Due to related parties
Refundable advances
Net Cash from Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property and equipment
Restricted cash

Net Cash from Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY
Payments made on capital lease obligation

Net Change in Cash and Cash Eguivalents

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Beginning of year

End of year

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid during the year for interest

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTING AND

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Computers and equipment acquired under capital leases

See notes to financial statements

Year Ended June 30,

2019 2018
(76,632) % -
225,067 205,650

6,300 -
84,992 113,324
(175,622) 33,408
313,051 (313,051)
(675,137) (258,074)
850 (850)
123,613 (191,056)
14,275 257,163
292,173 59,414
29,226 13,687
162,156 (80,385)
(125,024) (179,580)

(132) -

(125,156) (179,580)
(63,135) (25,767)
(26,135) (285,732)
1,519,271 1,805,003
1493136  $ 1519271
19,596 % 25,484

- 53,400



Democracy Prep Endurance Charter School

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 and 2018

Organization and Tax Status

Democracy Prep Endurance Charter School (the “School”) is a New York State, not-for-
profit educational corporation that was incorporated to operate a charter school pursuant
fo Article 56 of the Education Law of the State of New York. The School was granted a
provisional charter on July 16, 2012, valid for a term of five years and renewable upon
expiration by the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York. The Board
of Regents approved and issued a renewal to the School’'s charter expiring on June 30,
2022. The Schoal's mission is to educate students and build scholars by providing them
with a demanding academic program that prepares them for success in coilege and
citizenship. Classes commenced in Harlem, New York in September 2012, and the School
provided education to approximately 618 students in grades sixth through twelfth during
the 2018-2019 academic year.

Effective July 1, 2019, the School merged into Democracy Prep New York Charter
Schools. The School ceases to exist as a legal entity in conjunction with the merger. The
plan of merger was approved by the New York State Board of Regents.

The School has an agreement with the New York City Department of Education
(“NYCDOE") to share public school space at no annual cost. The School occupies
approximately 13,715 square feet on one floor of a public school building. The School also
shares the gymnasium, auditorium, and cafeteria with the public school, which
approximates 8,484 square feet. The School is not responsible for rent, utilities, custodial
services, and school safety services other than those required for days and times the
School operates outside of the traditional NYCDOE schedule. The School was unable to
determine a value for the contributed space and related services and did not record any
value for use of donated facilities or services. This location is the home of Democracy
Prep Endurance Middle School and houses grades sixth through eighth.

The New York City Department of Education provides free lunches and transportation
directly to some of the School's students. Such costs are not included in these financial
statements. The School covers a portion of the cost of lunches for children not entitled to
the free lunches.

Except for taxes that may be due for unrelated business income, the School is exempt
from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and from
state and local income taxes under comparable laws.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation and Use of Estimates

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("U.S. GAAP"),
which requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Accordingly actual results could differ from those estimates.

9



Democracy Prep Endurance Charter School

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 and 2018

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Change in Accounting Principle

On July 1, 2018, the School adopted new guidance regarding the Presentation of Financial
Statements for Not-for Profit Entities. This guidance requires the School to collapse the
three-category (unrestricted, temporarily restricted, and permanently restricted)
classification of net assets into two categories: with donor restrictions and without donor
restrictions. In addition, the new guidance requires the School to make certain expanded
disclosures relating to the liquidity of financial assets, and expenses both by their natural
and functional classification in one location in the financial statements. As a resulf of
implementing this standard, prior year amounts for unrestricted net assets and temporarily
restricted net assets were reclassified as net assets without donor restrictions and net
assets with donor resftrictions, respectively.

Net Asset Presentation

Resources for various purposes are classified for accounting and reporing purposes into
net asset categories established according to nature and purpose as follows:

Net assets without donor restrictions - consist of resources available for the general
support of the School’'s operations. Net assets without donor restrictions may be used
at the discretion of the School's management and/or the Board of Trustees. Board
designated net assets was established by the Board of Trustees for the Dream Dollar
Scholarship Fund which is a college scholarship fund for students who graduate from
the School.

Net assetfs with donor restrictions — represents amounts restricted by donors for
specific activities of the School or to be used at a future date. The School records
contributions as net assets with donor restrictions if they are received with donor
stipulations that limit their use either through purpose or fime restrictions. When a
donor restriction expires, that is, when a time restriction ends or a purpose restriction is
fulfiled, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor
restrictions and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released from
restrictions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash balances held in bank accounts and highly liquid
financial instruments with maturities of three maonths or less at the time of purchase.

Restricted Cash
Under the provisions of its charter, the School established a dissclution reserve account to

pay for legal and audit expenses that would be associated with a dissolution, should it
occur.

10



Democracy Prep Endurance Charter School

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 and 2018

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued))
Property and Equipment

The School follows the practice of capitalizing all expenditures for property and equipment
with costs in excess of $5,000 and a useful life in excess of one year. Leasehold
improvements are amortized over the shorter of the term of the lease, inclusive of all renewal
periods, which are reasonably assured, or the estimated useful life of the asset. Purchased
property and equipment are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition. Minor costs of
maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. All property and equipment purchased
with government funding is capitalized, unless the government agency retains legal fitle to
such assets, in which case it is expensed as incurred.

Depreciation and amortization is recognized on the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of such assets as follows:

Furniture and fixdures 7 years
Computers and equipment 3 and & years
Software 3 and 5 years

Property and equipment are reviewed for impairment if the use of the asset significantly
changes or another indicator of possible impairment is identified. If the carrying amount for
the asset is not recoverable, the asset is written down to its fair value. There were no
asset impairments for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018.

Refundable Advances

The School records certain government operating revenue as refundable advances until
related services are performed, at which time they are recognized as revenue.

Revenue and Support

Revenue from the state and local governments resulting from the School's charter status
and based on the number of students enrolled is recorded when services are performed in
accordance with the charter agreement. Federal and other state and local funds are
recorded when expenditures are incurred and billable to the government agency.

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the School that
is, in substance, unconditional. Grants and other contributions of cash are reported as net
assets with donor restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations. Restricted
contributions and grants that are made to support the School's current year activities are
recorded as net assets without donor restrictions. Contributions of assets other than cash
are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation.

Marketing and Recruitment
Marketing and recruitment costs are expensed as incurred. Marketing and recruitment

expense for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 was $25,519 and $20,706.

1



Democracy Prep Endurance Charter School

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 and 2018

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Functional Expense Allocation

The majority of expenses can generally be directly identified with the program or
supporting service to which they relate and are charged accordingly. Other expenses by
function have been allocated among program and supporting services classifications on
the basis of periodic time and expense studies and other basis as determined by
management of the School to be appropriate.

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes

The School recognizes the effect of income tax positions only if those positions are more
likely than not to be sustained. Management has determined that the School had no
uncertain tax positions that would require financial statement recognition or disclosure.

The Schoci is no longer subject to examinations by the applicable taxing jurisdictions for
years prior 1o June 30, 2016,

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the 2018 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the
2019 presentation.

Grants and Contracts Receivable

Grants and contracts receivable consists of federal, state, and city entitiements and
grants. The School expects to collect these receivables within one year.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following at June 30:

2018 2018
Furniture and fixtures $ 420797 $ 366,017
Computers and equipment 853,645 789,819
Software 18,045 18,045
Leasehoid improvements 18,781 18,663
1,311,268 1,192,544

Accumulated depreciation
and amortization {764,886) {539,819)

$ 546382 § 652,725

During the year ended June 30, 2019, the School disposed of property and equipment
resulting in a loss of $6,300.

12



Democracy Prep Endurance Charter School
Notes to Financial Statemenis
June 30, 2019 and 2018
Liquidity and Availability of Financial Assets
Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other
restrictions limiting their use within one year of the statement of financial position date, are

comprised of the following at June 30, 2018:

Financial Assets at year end:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,493,136
Grants and confracts receivable 741,162
Due from related party ~

Total Financial Assets 2,234,298

Amounts unavailable for general expenditure:

Net assets with donor restrictions 11,0686
Board designated net assets 135,800
$ 2,087,432

As part of the School's liquidity management plan, the status of grants and contracts
receivable is monitored regularly and any excess cash is held in money market accounts
and other liquid instruments until it is required for operational use. The Board of Trustees
has designated net assets without donor restrictions that could be drawn upon through
board resolution and can be made available for current operations.

Related Party Transactions {not disclosed elsewhere)

The School is affiliated with Democracy Prep New York Charter Schools ("DPNY”), a New
York State not-for-profit education corporation that operates four charter schools in New
York City. The School and DPNY schools are managed by Democracy Prep Public
Schools (“DPPS”).

The School is an affiliate of DPPS, a New York State not-for-profit charter management
organization. The School entered into a management agreement with DPPS to assume
responsibility for the School's educational process, management, and operations. As
compensation to DPPS for these services rendered, the School shall pay to DPPS an
annual fee equal to 15% of the School's non-competitive public revenue in the initial term
of one year. The percentage will decrease by one-half percent {0.5%) in each renewal
term until it reaches a minimum of 12% of the non-competitive public revenue of the
School and will remain in effect for all subsequent renewal terms. Following the initial term,
the agreement will automatically extend for successive one-year periods unless terminated
by either party. For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, DPPS charged an annual
management fee to the School of 12.0% and 12.5%. On July 1, 2015, the School and
DPPS amended the management agreement to include a provision which states that in
the event the School incurs an operating deficit due to management fees charged, the
management fees will be reduced to an amount that would result in a zero change in net
assets. This provision of the agreement was eliminated as of July 1, 2018.
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Democracy Prep Endurance Charter School

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2018 and 2018

Related Party Transactions (not disclosed elsewhere) (continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2018, management fees charged by DPPS were reduced by
$355,496 to reduce the operating deficit to zero. For the years ended June 30, 2019 and
2018, the School incurred $1,793,149 and $715,277 in management fees. At June 30,
2018, the School prepaid management fees totaling $219,089.

The School entered info a 30 year sub-lease agreement with DPPS for use of classroom
facilities expiring on August 30, 2018, and was renewed on September 20, 2016 for 30
years expiring on August 30, 2047. This location is the home of Democracy Prep
Endurance High School and housed the 9% through 12" grade students during fiscal year
2019 (See Note 10). Under an amendment to the sublease agreement, the School prepaid
$1,000,000 of base rent to DFPPS during the year ended June 30, 2019. The School will be
entitled to a credit of $8,333.33 per month starting in July 2019. Prepaid rent is included in
the Statements of Financial Position under prepaid expenses,

By contract with DPNY, the School's students participate in DPNY’s Pathways program.
The School provides the per pupil revenue for each of its scholars in the program to
DPNY.

For operational efficiency and purchasing power, the School shares expenses with DPNY
and DPPS. The net balance due (to) from related parties consists of the following at June 30:

2019 2018
DPNY $ (362,723) §$ (273,588)
DPPS {203,038) 313,051
Due (To) From Related Parties, net $ (B65,767) § 39,463

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the School to concentrations of credit and
market risk consist principally of cash and cash equivalents on deposit with financial
institutions, which from time to time may exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation ("FDIC”) limit. The School does not believe that a significant risk of loss due to
the failure of a financial institution presently exists. As of June 30, 2019 and 2018,
approximately $1,243,000 and $1,268,000 of cash was maintained with an institution in
excess of FDIC limits.

Concentration of Reveniue and Support

The School receives a substantial portion of its support and revenue from the New York
City Department of Education. For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the School
received approximately 95% of its total revenue and support from the New York City
Department of Education. If the charter schoo! laws were modified, reducing or eliminating
these revenues, the School’s finances could be materially adversely affected.

14
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11.

Democracy Prep Endurance Charter Schoo!
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 and 2018
Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions of $11,066 and $8,806 at June 30, 2019 and 2018 were
restricted for the Korean dual language program.

Net assets of $6,240 and $5,398 were released from restriction in fiscal 2019 and 2018 by
incurring expenses for the Korean dual language program.

Commitments

Facility Leases

On September 20, 2016, the School entered into a sub-lease agreement with DPPS for
use of classroom facilities at the 2™ floor of the building located at 230 East 123 Street,

New York, NY. The lease term is 30 years, expiring on June 30, 2047.

The future minimum lease payments under this facility lease are as follows for the years
ending June 30:

2020 $ 940,214
2021 940,214
2022 849,418
2023 967,827
2024 977,032
Thereafter 23,883,681

The School recegnizes rent expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
Rent expense in excess of payments is recorded as deferred rent in the accompanying
statements of financial position. Occupancy expense for the years ended June 30, 2019
and 2018 amounted to $1,026,392 and $1,032,280.

Capital Lease Obligation

The School leases computers and equipment under capital leases that expire at various
dates through August 2022. The asset and liability under the capital lease are recorded at
the present value of the minimum lease payments. The asset is being depreciated over its
estimated useful life.

Following is a summary of property and equipment held under capital leases at June 30:

2019 2018
Computers and Equipment $ 395713 $ 385713
Accumulated Depreciation {230,424) (171,905)

$ 156,286 § 223,808
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14.

Democracy Prep Endurance Charter School
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 and 2018
Capital Lease Obligation (continued)

The future minimum lease payments are as follows for the years ending June 30;

2020 $ 82,201
2021 82,201
2022 8,604
2023 1,434
Total minimum lease payments 174,440
Amounts representing interest (18,123)
Present value of minimum lease payments 156,317
Current portion (69,491}
Capital lease obligation, less current portion 3 86,826

Employee Benefit Plan

The School maintains a retirement plan qgualified under Internal Revenue Code 403(b), for
the benefit of its eligible employees. Under the plan, the School provided matching
contributions up to 5% of the participant’s annual compensation. Employer match for the
years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 amounted to $158,532 and $190,886.

Contingency

Centain grants and contracts may be subject to audit by the funding sources. Such audits
might result in disallowances of costs submitted for reimbursement. Management is of the
opinion that such cost disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect on the
accompanying financial statements. Accordingly, no amounts have been provided in the
accompanying financial statements for such potential claims.

Subsequent Events Evaluation by Management

Management has evaluated subsequent events for disclosure and/or recognition in the
financtal statements through the date that the financial statements were available to be
issued, which date is October 30, 2019.

Effective July 1, 2019, the School merged into Democracy Prep New York Charter

Schools. The School ceases {o exist as a legal entity in conjunction with the merger. The
plan of merger was approved by the New York State Board of Regents.

* R ok g %
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With
Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditors’ Report

Board of Trustees
Democracy Prep Endurance Charter School

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of Democracy Prep Endurance Charter School (the “School”), which comprise the
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019, and the related statements of activities,
functional expenses, and cash flows for the year ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 30, 2019.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
School's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
School’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies, and therefore, material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. We did identify deficiencies in
internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as items
2019-001, which we consider to be a material weakness, and 2019-002, which we consider to
be a significant deficiency.

PKF O'CONNOR DAVIES, LLP
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528 | Tel: 914.381.8900 | Fax: 914.381.8910 | www.pkfod.com

PKF O'Cennor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any responsibility
or liability for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms.



Beard of Trustees
Democracy Prep Endurance Charter School
Page 2

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School's financial statements are
free from material misstaternent, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

The School’s Response to the Findings

The School's response to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and responses. The School’s response was not subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the School's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School's
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose.

PKE O Comp, Danss, LLP

Harrison, New York
October 30, 2019



Democracy Prep Endurance Charter School

Schedule of Findings and Responses
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Section | - Financial Statement Findings

MATERIAL WEAKNESS
2019-001- General Ledger Maintenance and Account Analysis (Repeat Finding)

Criteria
An effective financial closing process provides the School with accurate and timely
financial statements

Condition

Schedules and reconciliations were not prepared and updated throughout the fiscal year.
This delayed management’s preparation of the year-end financial statements and the
completion of the audit package. We noted that improvements are needed in the
financial statement closing process fo address the timeliness of the School's year-end
financial reporting.

Cause
The finance department appears to be understaffed and continual training is required to
enable a good understanding of effective internal controls.

Effect

The School's system of internal control is not effective for managing its resources and
resulted in difficulties with meeting external deadlines for submission of the audited
financial statements.

Recommendation

We recommend that the School assess the adequacy of resources in the finance
department in relation to its periodic reporting responsibility. The School may consider
an increased level of financial analysis of significant accounts on a regular basis, as well
as providing additional support to the finance department in the area of financial
reporting.

Views of Responsible Officials
See management corrective action plan in Exhibit A.

19



Democracy Prep Endurance Charter School

Schedule of Findings and Responses (continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2019

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY
2019-002- Competitive Bidding

Criteria
The School's Financial Policies and Procedures Manual ("FPP”), requires three price
quotes for purchases and/or contracts greater than $5,000.

Condition
During our test of three procurement transactions over $5,000, we noted that the School
did not perform competitive bidding procedures on the selections.

Cause
This condition was caused by management’s ineffective monitoring and review of the
competitive bidding procedures in its FPP.

Effect
The School is not in compliance with its FPP with regard to procurement procedures.

Recommendation

The School should strictly comply with the FPP and retain required documentation of at
least three quotes when competitive bidding is required. We recommend that
management periodically reviews transactions that require competitive bidding. We also
recommend that management considers increasing the threshold for bidding.

Views of Responsible Officials
See management corrective action plan in Exhibit A.
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Democracy Prep Endurance Charter School

Schedule of Findings and Responses {continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Secticn Il — Status of Prior Year Findings

2018-001 - General Ledger Maintenance and Account Analysis

Condition

Schedules and reconciliations were not prepared and updated throughout the fiscal year.
This delayed management's preparation of the year-end financial statements and the
completion of the audit package.

Status
This condition was not corrected in fiscal 2019, see 2019-001.
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Democracy Prep Public Schools Response to Audit Findings

Pursuant to a Management Agreement, Democracy Prep Public Schools provided financial and back
office support to Democracy Prep Endurance Charter School and has prepared the following response
on behalf of Democracy Prep Endurance Charter School.

Response to General Ledger Maintenance and Account Analysis Material Weakness

In response to this finding and the previous year’s finding, Democracy Prep Public Schools has retained
Charter School Business Management to review and improve accounting and financial practices for
schools throughout the Democracy Prep network. Part of CSBM’s charge is to create and refine systems
such that general ledger maintenance and account analysis is performed in a timely basis throughout
the year. Management has increased the resources provided to the finance function and has adopted
systems such as bill.com and revised its financial policies and procedures. The organization is also
working with its financial consulting team to review and implement financial policies and processes that
will facilitate accurate and timely financial reporting including establishing a robust monthly close
process that will ensure that all accounts are reconciled and adjusting journal entries are recorded on a

monthly basis.

Response to Competitive Bidding Deficienc

The organization has tightened controls on purchasing such that the financial policies and procedures
are strictly adhered to through regular oversight. In addition, Democracy Prep New York Charter Schools
has amended its financial policies and procedures manual to increase the bidding threshold to $10,000.

Respectfully,

= .

Natasha Trivers
Chief Executive Officer
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Communication on
Internal Control Matters

The Board of Trustees
Democracy Prep Endurance Charter School

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Democracy Prep Endurance
Charter School (the “School”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the School's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School's
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School's
internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as discussed below, we identified a
deficiency in internal control that we consider to be a material weakness and a deficiency that we
consider be a significant deficiency.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’'s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the deficiency in the School’s internal control presented in
Addendum A to this letter to be a material weakness.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance. We consider the deficiency in the School’s internal control presented in Addendum B to
this letter to be a significant deficiency.

We have other observations and recommendations that are opportunities for strengthening internal
control and/or operating efficiency, presented in Addendum C to this letter.

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of
Trustees, The State Education Department of the State University of New York, and others within
the School, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

K O Crang. banas, LLP

October 30, 2019

PKF O'CONNOR DAVIES, LLP
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528 | Tel: 914.381.8900 | Fax: 914.381.8910 | www.pkfod.com

PKF O'Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any responsibility
or liability for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms.
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Democracy Prep Endurance Charter School
Addendum A

Deficiency in Internal Control that We Consider to be a Material Weakness

General Ledaer Maintenance and Account Analysis {(Prior Year Comment)

During our audit, we noted that schedules and reconciliations were not prepared and
updated throughout the fiscal year. This delayed management's preparation of the year-
end financial statements and the completion of the audit package. We noted that
improvements are needed in the financial statement closing processes to address the
fimeliness of the Organization’s year-end financial reporting.

Management should assess the adequacy of resources in the finance department in
relation to its periodic reporting responsibility. The Organization may consider an
increased level of financial analysis of significant accounts on a regular basis, as well as
providing additional support to the finance department in the area of financial reporting.



Democracy Prep Endurance Charter School
Addendum B

Deficiency in Internal Control that We Consider to be a Significant Deficiency

. Competitive Bidding

The School's Financial Policies and Procedures Manual ("FPP"), requires three price
quotes for purchases and/or contracts greater than $5,000. During our test of three
procurement transactions over $5,000, we noted that the School did not perform
competitive bidding procedures on the selections.

The School should strictly comply with the FPP and retain required documentation of at
least three quotes when competitive bidding is required. We recommend that
management periodically reviews transactions that require competitive bidding. We also
recommend that management considers increasing the threshold for bidding.



Democracy Prep Endurance Charter School
Addendum C

Other Observations and Recommendations for Strengthening
Internal Control and/or Operating Efficiency

3. Maintenance of Fixed Asset Tracker

The School was not able to provide us with a detailed inventory listing of property and
equipment

As indicated in the School's FPP, Property and eguipment acquisitions shouid be
identified, tagged and entered into a detailed fixed asset ledger, and there shouid be a
clear trail of tracing the capital asset to the fixed asset ledger maintained by the School.
In addition, the School should take a physical inventory of all capital assets to ensure the
completeness and accuracy of the School’s records.
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Democracy Prep Endurance Charter School
Statement of Financial Position
as of June 30

2019
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,493,136
Grants and contracts receivable 741,162
Accounts receivables
Prepaid Expenses 6,543
Contributions and other receivables -
Other current assets 796.962
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 3,037,803
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Building and Equipment, net $ 546,382
Restricted Cash 75,440
Security Deposits 108,010
Other Non-Current Assets -
TOTAL NON-CURRENT 729,832
ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS 3,767,635
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 277,174
Accrued payroll, payroll taxes and benefits 686,468
Current Portion of Loan Payable -
Due to Related Parties 362,723
Refundable Advances 47,742
Deferred Revenue -
Other Current Liabilities 136.073
TOTAL CURRENT 1,510,180
LIABILITIES
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Loan Payable; Due in More than One Year $ -
Deferred Rent 401,514
Due to Related Party -
Other Long-Term Liabilities 86.826
TOTAL LONG-TERM 488,340

LIABILITIES



TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

1,998,520

1,758,049
11,066

1,769,115

3,767,635




Democracy Prep Endurance Chi
Statement of Financial Pc
as of June 30

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Grants and contracts receivable
Accounts receivables
Prepaid Expenses
Contributions and other receivables
Other current assets

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Building and Equipment, net
Restricted Cash
Security Deposits
Other Non-Current Assets

TOTAL NON-CURRENT
ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll, payroll taxes and benefits
Current Portion of Loan Payable
Due to Related Parties
Refundable Advances
Deferred Revenue
Other Current Liabilities
TOTAL CURRENT
LIABILITIES
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Loan Payable; Due in More than One Year
Deferred Rent
Due to Related Party
Other Long-Term Liabilities

TOTAL LONG-TERM
LIABILITIES

2018

R

1,519,271
565,540

331,406

313.051

2,729,268

652,725
75,308
108,860

836,893

3,566,161

153,561
672,193
273,588

18,516

148,127

1,265,985

298,113

156,316

454,429



TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

1,720,414

1,835,941
9,806

1,845,747

3,566,161




Democracy Prep Endurance Charter Sc

OPERATING REVENUE
State and Local Per Pupil Revenue - Reg

Statement of Activities

as of June 30

2019

Unrestricted

Temporarily

Restricted

. Ed $

State and Local Per Pupil Revenue - SPED
State and Local Per Pupil Facilities Revenue

Federal Grants

State and City Grants

Other Operating Income

Food Service/Child Nutrition Program

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

EXPENSES
Program Services
Regular Education
Special Education
Other Programs
Total Program Services
Management and general
Fundraising

TOTAL EXPENSES
SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM OPERATIONS

SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE
Interest and Other Income
Contributions and Grants
Fundraising Support
Investments
Donated Services
Other Support and Revenue

TOTAL SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE

9,793,664 $
824,242
751,825
486,429

48,442

11,904,602

7,791,466 $
1,848,337

9,639,803
2,360,040

11,999,843

(95,241)

1,034 §
10,075

Net Assets Released from Restrictions / Loss on $

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

11,109

6,240 $

(77,892)

7,50(
(6,240)

1,260



NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR $ 1,835,941 $ 9,806
PRIOR YEAR/PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS - -

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 1,758,049 $ 11,066




hool

2018
Total Total
9,793,664 $ 8,352,948
824,242 692,116
751,825 784,514
486,429 464,918
48,442 -
11,904,602 10,294,496
7,791,466 $ 6,461,955
1,848,337 1,671,698
9,639,803 8,133,653
2,360,040 2,181,945
11,999,843 10,315,598
(95,241) (21,102)
1,034 $ 9,102
17,575 12,000
18,609 21,102
- $ -

(76,632)



$ 1,845,747  § 1,845,747

$ 1,769,115 $ 1,845,747




Democracy Prep Endurance Charter School
Statement of Cash Flows

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Increase (decrease) in net assets
Revenues from School Districts
Accounts Receivable
Due from School Districts
Depreciation
Grants Receivable
Due from NYS
Grant revenues
Prepaid Expenses
Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses
Accrued Liabilities
Contributions and fund-raising activities
Miscellaneous sources
Deferred Revenue
Interest payments
Other
Other

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of equipment
Other
NET CASH PROVIDED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS - FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal payments on long-term debt
Other
NET CASH PROVIDED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

as of Ju

2019

(76,632)

225,067
(175,622)

324,863
123,613

14,275

6,300
29,226

(394,776)
85,842

162,156

(125,024)
(132)

(125,156)

(63,135)

$

(63,135)

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $

Cash at beginning of year
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

(26,135)
1,519,271

1,493,136




ine 30

2018

$ -

205,650
33,408

(258,074)

(191,056)

257,163

13,687

(253,637)

112,474

$ (80,385)

(179,580)

$ (179,580)

(25,767)

$ (25,767)

$ (285,732)
1,805,003
$ 1,519,271




Personnel Services Costs
Administrative Staff Personnel
Instructional Personnel
Non-Instructional Personnel

Total Salaries and Staff

Fringe Benefits & Payroll Taxes

Retirement

Management Company Fees

Legal Service

Accounting / Audit Services

Other Purchased / Professional /
Consulting Services

Building and Land Rent / Lease
Repairs & Maintenance
Insurance

Utilities

Supplies / Materials
Equipment / Furnishings
Staff Development
Marketing / Recruitment
Technology

Food Service

Student Services

Office Expense

Democracy Prep Endurance Charter Scho
Statement of Functional Expenses
as of June 30

2019

Program Services

Suj

No. of Regular Special Total Fundraising
Positions Education Education Education
$ $
19.00 161,583 38,331 - 199,914
55.00 3,497,785 829,766 4,327,551
1.00 35,725 8,475 - 44,200
75.00 3,695,093 876,572 4,571,665
693,769 164,580 - 858,349
102,861 24,401 - 127,262
1,147,301 272,170 1,419,471
- 134,958
109,081 25,877
656,711 155,789 - 812,500
118,130 28,023 - 146,153
37,773 8,961 - 46,734
34,034 8,074 - 42,108
253,713 60,187 - 313,900
2,139 507 - 2,646
164,992 39,140 - 204,132
16,328 3,873 - 20,201
72,216 17,131 - 89,347
359,184 85,208 - 444,392
73,321 17,393 - 90,714



Depreciation 144,004 34,162 - 178,166
OTHER 110.816 26.289 - 137,105

Total Expenses $ 7,791,466 $ 1,848,337 $ - $ 9,639,803 $




ol

2018
»porting Services
Management Total Total
and General
$ $ $ $
1,203,498 1,203,498 1,403,412 1,313,615
- 4,327,551 4,063,895
- - 44,200 53,493
1,203,498 1,203,498 5,775,163 5,431,003
225,962 225,962 1,084,311 958,719
33,502 33,502 160,764 192,963
373,678 373,678 1,793,149 715,277
1,970 1,970 1,970 1,575
20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
35,528 170,486
35,528 198,957
213,892 213,892 1,026,392 1,032,280
38,475 38,475 184,628 180,797
12,303 12,303 59,037 49,165
11,085 11,085 53,193 61,770
- - 313,900 294,741
696 696 3,342 1,802
53,738 53,738 257,870 229,042
5,318 5,318 25,519 20,706
23,521 23,521 112,868 117,018
- - 444,392 468,295
23,880 23,880 114,594 66,237



46,901 46,901 225,067 205,650
36.093 36,093 173,198 69.601

$ 2,360,040 $ 2,360,040 $ 11,999,843 $ 10,315,598




Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of Trustees
Member

Name:
Kathryn Stanton (Katie Duffy)

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation):

Democracy Prep Endurance Charter School

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

Board member

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes _ X_No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold,
your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?

_X___Yes No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

| served as CEO for Democracy Prep Public Schools.




4. |dentify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that

you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to Name of person
financial avoid a conflict | holding interest or
interest/transacti of interest, engaging in
on (e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in you
discussion)
Management Recused voting
Agreement and participating | self
in board
deliberations.

5. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,

partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

Organization | Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee Steps
conducting business | e value of and/or immediate taken to

business with | conducte the family member of avoid

the school(s) d household holding an | conflict of




business interest in the interest
conducted organization
conducting business
with the school(s) and
the nature of the

interest
Managem | ~$1million self Recused
Democracy ent from
Prep Public services deliberation
Schools s and vote
= S / / _

i /34 []9

Signature (_/ - T Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.




Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
Trustees Member

Name:

Linda A. Bell

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation):

DSNY

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

None.

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes x No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (‘CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?

Yes x No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.




4.

Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to Name of person
financial avoid a conflict | holding interest or
interest/transacti of interest, engaging in
on (e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in you
discussion)
NONE NONE NONE NONE
Please write “None” if applicablle. Do not leave|this space blank.

5.

Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”



Oiganization ‘Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee

conducting business e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducte the family member of Steis
the school(s) d business household holding an P
P A taken to
conducted interest in the pame
organization :
5 - conflict of
conducting business intarest
with the school(s) and
the nature of the
interest
NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE
|

L E 2 & . w/ 7/30/2019

Signature Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.













Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
Trustees Member

Name:

SanyA Crosseglt !

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation):

Demam(/v, ﬁep &En duanice

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

Secvetory)

2. Are you an gmployee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?

Yes )O No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.




4.

Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to Name of person
financial avoid a conflict | holding interest or
interest/transacti of interest, engaging in
on (e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in you
discussion)
Please write INone” if applicablle. Do not leave|this space blank.
Noné

5.

Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”



Or_ggnization Nature of Abpfoximat Name of Trustee
conducting business | e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducte the family member of Steps
| the school(s) | d business household holding an P
; 2 : taken to
‘ conducted interest in the :
gprcal avoid
organization :
2 : conflict of
conducting business interaat
with the school(s) and
: the nature of the

interest

(1oN i

o~

V/,,. /7 —~
oo / =zl 6&/ — 7 / 3@/ 20l4

/Signature Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.




Disclosure of Financial interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
Trustees Member

Name:

Rosg f\. Trom me ~

Name of Charter Schoo!l Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter schoo!l is the only school operated by the education
corporation):

De m C ooy Pruo {{\LL - \’{OFI/\

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

BOCM‘&}\— Me b e —

2. Are you an.employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMO"), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?

Yes N No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.




4. ldentify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to Name of person
financial avoid a conflict | holding interest or
interest/transacti of interest, engaging in
on (e.q., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in you
discussion)
Plefgg/@imi@e” if applicablle. Do not leaveithis space blank.

5. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”







Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
Trustees Member

Name:

,%é{/\a/‘/{‘ﬁ/ﬂ& >

Name of Charter @I Education Corporation {the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education

corporation):

DQ VoCra \I} Q’,ﬂp n c{ (orice

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
("Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

2. Are you an.employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes WNO

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter schooi,
education corporation, andf/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMOQ"), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, inciuding, but not limited to,

the Ieasexg#reai or personal property to the said entities?

Yes No

If Yes, pleaﬁse provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date,




4. ldentify each interest/iransaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment

status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to Name of person
financial avoid a conflict | holding interest or
interest/transacti of interest, engaging in
on (e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in you

discussion)

Please write “None” if applicab;,?. Do not leave|this space blank.
Jd :

/i

5. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”



Organization | Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee

conducting business e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducte the family member of Steps
the school(s) d business household holding an takelf:to
conducted interest in the Aol
organization .
condugting business .. cpnﬂnct of
interest

with the school(s) and
the nature of the
interest

Please write “None” iff apglicable. Do not leave this space blank.

Signature Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.

last revised 08/21/2018



Entry 8 BOT Table

Last updated: 08/01/2019

1. SUNY AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide information for VOTING Trustees only.
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide
information for all VOTING and NON VOTING trustees.

1/3



1. Current Board Member Information (Enter info for each BOT member)

=

N

W

Ul

Trustee
Name
and
Email
Address

Khrary
Barnes

Sonya
Crosswell

Donald
Porter

Ross
Fromer

Katie

Position
on the
Board

Chair

Trustee/M
ember

Trustee/M
ember

Trustee/M
ember

Trustee/M
ember

la. Are there more than 9

members of the Board of

Trustees?

Committ
ee
Affiliation
s

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/a

N/A

No

Voting
Member
Per By
Laws
(Y/N)

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

2/3

Number
of Terms
Served

Start
Date of
Current
Term
(MM/DD/Y
YYY)

7/1/2018

07/01/20
17

07/01/20
17

07/01/20
17

07/01/20
18

End Date
of
Current
Term
(MM/DD/Y
YYY)

07/01/20
19

07/01/20
19

07/01/20
19

07/01/20
19

07/01/20
19

Board
Meetings
Attended
During
2018 19

5 or less

5 or less

5 or less

5 or less

5 or less



2. INFORMATION ABOUT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

1. SUNY-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide response relative to VOTING Trustees only.
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide a response
relative to all trustees.

a. Total Number of BOT Members on

June 30, 2019 4
b.Total Number of Members Added 0
During 2018 19
c. Total Number of Members who 1
Departed during 2018 19
d.Total Number of members in 2018 19,
as set by in Bylaws, Resolution or 4
Minutes
3. Number of Board meetings 5
held during 2018-19
4. Number of Board meetings 0

scheduled for 2019-20

Thank you.

3/3



Entry 9 - Board Meeting Minutes

Last updated: 08/01/2019

Instructions for submitting minutes of the BOT monthly meetings

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools must either provide a link to a complete set of
minutes that are posted on the charter school website, or upload a complete set of board meeting
minutes from July 2018 June 2019, which should match the number of meetings held during the 2018 19
school year.

DEMOCRACY PREP ENDURANCE CHARTER SCHOOL

Are all monthly BOT meeting No
minutes posted, which should

match the number of meetings

held during 2018-19 school year,

on the charter school's website?

B. Upload all monthly Board meeting minutes, which should match the number of
meetings held during the 2018-19 school year.

Combine all monthly meeting minutes into one .PDF file.

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/110426430/wNFCVDEEJA/

1/1



Democracy Prep New York Charter Schools
Board of Trustees Meeting

Thursday, July 12, 2018
240 East 123" St. New York, NY 10035

Meeting Minutes

PRESENT ABSENT GUESTS

Khary Barnes Katie Dutffy Greg Spreeman
Ross Frommer Kent Anker
Donald Porter Kimberly Mendez
Sonya Crosswell Katherine Perez

Khary Barnes, Board Chairman, called the meeting to order at 6:35 p.m.

MOTION: Motion to approve minutes from previous Board meeting, held on June 7, 2018.
Motion approved unanimonsly at 6:38 p.m.

Network Update

Kent Anker, EVP and General Counsel, gave the Network Update. He informed the board that
Democracy Prep at the Stewart Campus in San Antonio, TX, was in the midst of School Leader PD,
with the first day of school to be in mid-August.

In response to a question from Donald Porter on the biggest challenges facing the network, Mr.
Anker responded that managing growth and expansion while maintaining high quality, in addition to
tinding school leaders that are also mission leaders have both been key challenges. School leader PD
has been one of the main avenues to help maintain quality in schools. The Office of the
Superintendent works to ensure quality and culture are at the forefront of professional development.

The School Review process that occurs twice a year at each school also reinforces consistency in
school quality — though this process will become more difficult to sustain as the network continues
to grow. Schools administer nationally-normed MAP exams across the network as a comparison
point for performance. Internal assessments are also normed across the network, and school leaders
challenge themselves to remain competitive across network schools.

DP You is another way the network unites culturally to reinforce mission.

1767 PARK AVE | NEW YORK, NY 10457 WWW.DEMOCRACYPREP.ORG



Schools Update
Katherine Perez, Principal at DPEMS, gave the Schools Update.

Ms. Perez mentioned that one of her goals at the beginning of the year was to bring joy into
classrooms, in an effort to remain true to the school’s founding vision as a place of high rigor, but
one where kids can be kids. DPEMS recently celebrated Black History Month with a panel of Black
professionals and a STEP performance, as well as Women’s History Month with a dress-up day and
conversations about gender identification and acceptance.

Another goal for the year was to enforce aggressive monitoring which involved giving extensive
teedback on student work and challenging students toward growth. This required teachers and staff
to be even more intentional about reaching all scholars, even those who are high-performing.

As a result, DPEMS outperformed all NY middle schools on Math T3 exams, and 6th grade
Reading had the highest passing grades in NY. All exams are normed across the network and given
blind so that teachers cannot teach directly to the test. DPEMS was in the top quartile of best school
reviews this year. Evaluation of the school occurs in twice-yearly school reviews, and Ms. Perez is
evaluated through School Leader Evals.

82% of staff members are returning, with five new staff members hired this year. Challenges for the
school have included making sure scholars show DREAM values outside of school, and this will be
a bigger focus in the upcoming school year. Statf encourage students to take initiative and ownership
of their individual journeys and education through a proposal system. In response to a question
from Mr. Frommer, Ms. Perez said she is most proud of scholars’ Math scores this year, and wants
to work towards strengthening culture and making students feel like they have a stronger voice.

MOTION: Motion to authorize DPPS to submit 2017-18 DPE Annual Report, pending review by
Board Chair and Secretary.
Motion approved unanimously at 7:19p.m.

MOTION: Motion to approve the 2018-19 School Budget.
Motion approved unanimously at 7:32p.m.

MOTION: Motion to approve the 2018-19 Financial Policies and Procedures Manual.
Motion approved unanimously at 7:37p.m.

MOTION: Motion to approve the 2018-19 Management Agreement, subject to minor changes.
Motion approved unanimously at 7:41p.m.

MOTION: Motion to approve the 2018-19 Personnel Manual.
Motion approved unanimously at 8:01p.m.

MOTION: Motion to approve the 2018-19 Student & Family Handbook.
Motion approved unanimously at 8:02p.m.

MOTION: Motion to approve the 2018-19 Board Meeting Calendar.
Motion approved unanimously at 8:03p.m.



MOTION: Motion to approve the 2018-19 School Instructional Calendar.
Motion approved unanimously at 8:03p.m.

MOTION: Motion to reapprove Pia Dandiya as School Leader at DPEHS and Katherine Perez as
School Leader at DPEMS.
Motion approved unanimously at 8:14p.m.

MOTION: Motion to approve Khary Barnes as trustee for next three years until July 2021.
Khary Barnes recused himself, and motion was approved unanimously at 8:04p.m.

MOTION: Motion to approve Katie Duffy as trustee for next three years until July 2021.
Motion approved unanimously at 8:04p.m.

MOTION: Motion to adjourn the meeting.
Motion approved unanimously at 8:13p.m.



Democracy Prep New York Charter Schools
Board of Trustees Meeting

Thursday, July 12, 2018
240 East 123" St. New York, NY 10035

Meeting Minutes

PRESENT ABSENT GUESTS

Ross Frommer Khary Barnes Kent Anker

Donald Porter Katie Duffy Kimberly Mendez

Sonya Crosswell Greg Spreeman
Pia Dandiya

Sonya Crosswell, Board Secretary, called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.
School Update

Pia Dandiya, Principal at DPEHS, gave the Schools Update. She began by discussing the opening of
DPEH?’s first College Counseling office employing 2 counselors serving 59 scholars. The College
Application Class has been going on small group trips to target schools. Scholars have all taken the
SAT and ACT exams, and some will take the exams again in August and October. The average score
on the ACT was 1075, and aiming to push to 1130. DPEH has made three AP courses available for
scholars for the first time: American Literature, Biology, and Computer Science. Scholars in Grades
9-11 are going on college visits twice a year, and Juniors take a College Readiness course. Scholars
applying Early Decision to college will have applications due on November 1 and November 15.

In response to a question from Mr. Porter regarding the importance of school brand in college
admissions, Ms. Dandiya mentions the great work the College Access team at the CMO has done to
build the Democracy Prep brand and leverage existing relationships with college admissions offices
across the country. The Advanced Regents graduation requirement also sets scholars apart in the
admissions process. College counselors have attended National College Counselor conferences,
allowing time to network with other schools and admissions representatives in this effort.

In response to a question from Mr. Frommer about DP’s reputation for college success, Kent Anker
spoke to CREDO studies that have shown DP schools as highly effective in preparing scholars for
college. The Charter Schools Program reports on DP’s ability to effectively use grant funds has also
highlighted areas of success in college access and preparation across the network.

1767 PARK AVE | NEW YORK, NY 10457 WWW.DEMOCRACYPREP.ORG



Ms. Dandiya mentions that her proudest moment last year was the Junior class performance on
Regents exams. While only 9% of Black students in NY graduate with an Advanced Regents
diploma, an impressive 99% of DP graduates do, which leads to greater opportunity for scholars in
the college application process, as the Advanced Regents diploma is associated with lesser need for
remediation in college.

An opportunity for improvement in the future is managing schoolwide conflict. Evaluating how
scholars can more effectively engage in discussion and without leveraging social media, etc. is a
priority for the school. Staff has been diligent and quick to respond when these situations arise.

DPEH’s schoolwide goal is to “Lift Every Voice.” The school is introducing identity celebrations
for scholars in weekly town halls. DPEH celebrated African Heritage month with a fashion show
and a potluck; every month onwards will celebrate a different heritage or identity. The message
school leadership intends to send to scholars through these efforts is: who you are is who we want. These
celebrations also welcome involvement by parents, families, and the community.

In response to a question from Mr. Porter on whether there were any areas of academic
disappointment, Ms. Dandiya mentioned that Korea III exam performance has been particularly
difficult. It has been challenging to find a staff member who can teach the rigor of the course while
also being an appropriate culture fit.

In response to a question from Ms. Cromwell about offering multiple language courses, Ms.
Dandiya replied that the school prioritizes Korean language, maintaining this cultural connection
integral to the DP model, and at this time the school does not have the resources to expand.

MOTION: Motion to approve minutes from previous Board meeting, held on July 12, 2018.
Motion approved unanimously at 7:26p.m.

Network Update

Mr. Anker, EVP and General Counsel, gave the Network Update, mentioning that our newest
elementary school has successfully opened in San Antonio, Texas.

The annual network-wide professional development event, DP YOU, is coming up at the end of
October. Mr. Frommer will attend and sit on a panel to speak about the upcoming 2018 elections.
This is always a great opportunity to support culture and fellowship across the network and promote
the importance of professional development and our mission. Pedro Martinez, Superintendent of
San Antonio Independent School District, will be giving a presentation with Katie Duffy on
immigration and supports for ELL scholars across the network.

Becky LeBlond, Director of the Global Citizens Program, recently wrote a piece as a guest blogger
for EdWeek about the Global Citizens Program at Democracy Prep and the importance of studying
abroad, with the message: You can’t change the world if you haven’t seen it.

Mr. Anker also informed the Board that this would be DP’s last year operating in Congress Heights,
Washington, D.C. DPPS will no longer be managing the school and is currently working with the
Board to find another operator. DPPS holds itself accountable the same way it does its scholars, and
the network was not able to achieve the growth and achievement promised to the community, and



we think the students would be better served by another operator. The level of trauma in the school
and surrounding community was unlike anything we’ve seen previously; we were unable to gain trust
from the community, leaving us unable to control the school environment. The network is
disappointed in this outcome and takes full responsibility for its failures in Congress Heights.

Financial Updates

Greg Spreeman, Chief Financial Officer, mentions that annual audits are in process and seem to be
proceeding well.

In response to a question from Mr. Frommer about healthcare costs, Mr. Spreeman mentions that
because the staff demographic hasn’t changed tremendously and DP has continued to expand
consistently over the past few years, the network has been able to hold healthcare costs flat.

MOTION: Motion to adjourn the meeting.
Motion approved unanimously at 8:06p.m.



DEMOCRACY PREP

ENDURANCE CHARTER SCHOOL
Work Hard. Go to College. Change the World!

Democracy Prep Endurance Charter School
Board of Trustees Meeting
November 19, 2018
240 East 123" Street, New York, NY 10035

MINUTES
Present Absent Guests
Khary Barnes Katie Duffy Rick Abare
Sonya Crosswell John Lindquist

Ross Frommer
Donald Porter

Khary Barnes, Board Chair, called the meeting to order at 6:38 p.m.

Network Update:

Rick Abare, Special Advisor to the CEO for Democracy Prep Public Schools (DPPS), updated the
Board on news from around the DPPS Network. Mr. Abare discussed DP-YOU, the yearly
professional development event, which brought over 850 Democracy Prep employees to San
Antonio for two days of workshops, training sessions and seminars. Mr. Abare thanked Ross
Frommer, Democracy Prep Endurance (DPE) Trustee, noting that Mr. Frommer’s participation in
this year’s event marked the first time a sitting Board member had led a session at DP-YOU.
Feedback for Mr. Frommer’s sections has been extremely positive.

Mr. Abare continued his update by noting that Trimester 1 is coming to a close across the network,
bringing with it end of Trimester assessments and parent-teacher conferences. Mr. Abare discussed
improvements made to end of trimester assessment results tracking systems, created by the data
team and used internally by School Leaders, Teachers and the Office of the Superintendent to assess
standard and item level performance for each scholar.

School & Academic Update:

Mzr. Abare shifted to a discussion around the performance of Democracy Prep Endurance Scholars
on 2018 New York State Assessments (NYSA) and Regents Examinations. Mr. Abare explained that
there’s a lot to be happy about looking back at the 2018 NYSA, noting proficiency on Math and
ELA exams exceeding local district proficiency in 6", 7" and 8" grade in both subjects. In
Mathematics, proficiency rates equaled or exceeded City and State rates in all three grades and in 6™
and 8" grade in ELA with 7" grade ELLA approaching. Noting this, Mr. Abare discussed 7" grade as
an area of focus for DPE Middle Leadership and the Office of the Superintendent, with stronger
supports and increased frequency of teacher coaching feedback loops.

Mr. Abare also called attention to new graphs on this report that examine the proportion of students
whose exam score lands in each proficiency level; 1, 2, 3 or 4, and compared DPE results to those of
District 5, New York City and New York State. These graphs help add context to binary proficiency



rates by giving a proxy on DPE’s ability to move scholars up from level to level during their time at
DPE. This phenomenon is especially visible in mathematics.

Mr. Abare discussed aspects of the 2018 NYSA that make direct comparisons to the 2017 NYSA
challenging. The number of testing days was reduced from three to two which logically necessitated
a change in test structure. Mr. Abare noted that the New York State Department of Education has
committed to keeping this structure unchanged for the next two academic years, which will allow for
much more accurate measures of year-over-year changes in proficiency.

Mzr. Abare briefly discussed Regent’s Exam pass rates at DPE High School, noting strong pass rates
in challenging subjects like Physics and Algebra II and noting the observation that, though decreases
in pass rates in Algebra I and ELLA were experienced across the City and Statewide, more direct
attention was being paid to these areas to shore up instruction in areas where the exams difficulty
levels increased from 2017 to 2018.

College Access:

John Lindquist, Assistant Director for the College Access & Success Team(CAST) at Democracy
Prep Public Schools, introduced himself to the Board. Mr. Lindquist, an eight-year veteran of
Democracy Prep, began his career with DP as a High School teacher at Democracy Prep Charter
High (DPCHS). After two years teaching, Mr. Lindquist transitioned to a roll as Assistant Principal
under now Superintendent Natasha Trivers, for three years. His work with Seniors at DPCHS made
him a natural fit on the College Access & Success Team, where this is his third year as Assistant
Director. Mr. Lindquist fulfils many roles on CAST including overseeing the Alumni Coaching
program and supporting High School based College Counselors in their use of CAST systems.

Following his introduction, Mr. Lindquist detailed his time working with DPE High School College
Counselors during the last two school years, as DPE High scholars grew into 11* grade last year and
12™ grade this year. Mr. Lindquist then detailed some of the tools he uses to maintain information
flow from schools to network and described how he supports school-based Counselors and Alumni.

Mr. Lindquist and the Board discussed various enrollment strategies and where DPE High School
Seniors found themselves in the process of applying to college, as well as clarifying differences
between Early Decision and Early Application. Prompted by a question from the Board, Mr.
Lindquist also discussed the importance of college visits, the challenge of finding schools that ‘fit’
scholars and the overarching thought process behind where our scholars are going. Ensuring our
scholars receive the best aid at schools that will support them throughout their four years is
paramount for CAST.

When Mr. Lindquist mentioned that college visits were important to exposing scholars to smaller
liberal arts schools that may fly under the radar, but which provide great aid and supports, Don
Porter, Trustee, noted a St. Olaf’s pennant. Mr. Lindquist mentioned that St. Olaf’s was his alma
mater, and this provided a prescient backdrop to the subsequent discussion on the intricacies of
choosing institutions that best support our scholars all the way through college.



MOTION: Motion to approve the minutes from the board’s September 20%, 2018 meeting.
Motion passed unanimonsly at 7:59 p.m.

MOTION: Motion to enter Executive Session.

Motion passed unanimonsly at 8:00 p.m.

MOTION: Motion to exit Executive Session.

Motion passed unanimonsly at 8:30 p.m.

MOTION: Motion to adjourn.

Motion passed unanimonsly at 8:30 p.m.
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Work Hard. Go to College. Change the World!

Democracy Prep Endurance Charter School
Board of Trustees Special Meeting
December 20, 2018
240 East 123" Street, New York, NY 10035

MINUTES
Present Absent Guests
Khary Barnes Katie Duffy (participated by Kent Anker
Sonya Crosswell phone) Andrew Stubbs

Ross Frommer
Donald Porter

Khary Barnes, Board Chair, called the special meeting to order at 6:55 p.m.
Discussion of Merger:

Kent Anker, DPPS Executive Vice President and General Counsel, explained to the Board that the
special meeting had been duly noticed and convened pursuant to the statutory requirements for a
merger. Notice had been placed in the newspaper and each Trustee had been mailed the merger
documents between five and ten days before the meeting as required. Mr. Anker explained that %4 of
the Board present for quorum (not including Ms. Duffy who was on the phone) needed to vote in
favor of the merger resolution for the merger to move forward. Mr. Anker further informed the
Board that Democracy Prep New York Charter Schools had voted in favor of the merger at its
special meeting on December 13, 2018. Ms. Duffy explained the academic and enrollment
advantages of a merger. Board members asked a number of questions concerning student retention,
the impact on programming of having a merged entity, governance and finances for the new entity.

Andrew Stubbs, DPPS Interim CFO, introduced himself, then presented to the Board concerning
DPE’s and DPNY’s year end audit report and each entities’ cash flow projections for the remainder
of the fiscal year. The Board questioned Mr. Stubbs extensively concerning the financial

presentation.

The Board then moved to enter Executive Session to discuss confidential personnel and other
matters.

MOTION: Motion to enter Executive Session.
Motion passed unanimonsly at 7:45 p.m.

MOTION: Motion to exit Executive Session.



Motion passed unanimonsly at 9:00 p.m.

MOTION: Motion to approve the Resolution of a Special Meeting of the Board of Trustees of
Democracy Prep Endurance Charter School in the form distributed to the Trustees and attached to
the minutes of the Special Meeting, which among other things, resolved that the Plan of Merger be
adopted; that the Chair was authorized to execute and deliver the Plan of Merger; empowered the
Chair to make any amendments that might be required by the authorizer; to execute any necessary
governmental filings; to take any further action to execute and deliver any further agreements or
instruments and to take any action to effectuate the Plan of Merger; authorized the Secretary to
certify any necessary resolutions; and authorized Democracy Prep Public Schools to file the
necessary papers with SUNY.

Motion passed unanimonsly by those Trustees present at 9:05 p.m.
MOTION: Motion to adjourn Special Meeting.

Motion passed unanimonsly at 9:05 p.m.



DEMOCRACY PREP

ENDURANCE CHARTER SCHOOL
Work Hard. Go to College. Change the World!

Democracy Prep Endurance Charter School
Board of Trustees Meeting
December 20, 2018
240 East 123" Street, New York, NY 10035

MINUTES
Present Absent Guests
Khary Barnes Katie Dutffy Kent Anker
Sonya Crosswell Andrew Stubbs

Ross Frommer
Donald Porter

Khary Barnes, Board Chair, called the meeting to order at 9:05 p.m.
MOTION: Motion to approve the minutes from the November 19, 2018 meeting.
Motion passed unanimonsly at 9:10 p..

The Board discussed the terms of the Promissory Note that Democracy Prep Endurance had
entered into with Democracy Prep Public Schools Inc. on December 12 by unanimous consent.

MOTION: Motion to: 1) approve and ratify the December 12, 2018 action by Unanimous Written
Consent of the Board of Trustees in which the Board deemed it to be in the best interest of
Democracy Prep Endurance to execute the Note and authorized Mr. Barnes to execute the Note on
behalf of Democracy Prep Endurance Charter School; and 2) extend the Event of Default provision
in Section 10 of the Note concerning Security from December 31, 2018 to January 31, 2019.

Motion passed unanimonsly at 9:25 p.m.
Legal Update

Mr. Anker provided a legal update of an action filed with the EEOC by a former employee of
Democracy Prep Endurance.

School Update

Mzr. Anker informed the Board that so far in early admissions Democracy Prep Endurance scholars
had been admitted to:

e UPenn
e Tufts



* NYU

Drexel

Pace (with $100k over 4 years!)
Howard (2 scholars)

Boston College

The Board was encouraged by the early results.

MOTION: Motion to adjourn the regular meeting.

Motion passed unanimonsly at 9:45 p.m.
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Democracy Prep Endurance Charter School
Board of Trustees Meeting
April 3, 2019
240 East 123" Street, New York, NY 10035

MINUTES
Present Absent Guests
Khary Barnes Katie Duffy Rick Abare
Sonya Crosswell Kent Anker
Ross Frommer Ralph Johnson
Donald Porter Andrew Stubbs

Khary Barnes, Board Chair, called the meeting to order at 6:12 p.m.

College Update:

Ralph Johnson, Senior Director of College Access and Success, gave a presentation to the Board,
focusing on Democracy Prep Endurance (DPE) Senior and their college admissions statistics. Mr.
Johnson began his presentation by discussing his history of working in admissions offices, primarily
at Brown University. This experience gave him the opportunity to see many applications, focused on
New York City students. Mr. Johnson then discussed his time at Democracy Prep Public Schools
(DPPS) and the history of persistence, national metrics and number of admissions by DPPS
Scholars. Fielding a question from the Board, Mr. Johnson also touched on the number of early
decision and eatly action scholars, and the pros and cons of the early admission process. Mr.
Johnson closed his presentation with a discussion the percentage of financial need that is being met
and the idea of ‘need-awareness’ at Colleges and Universities.

School & Academic Update:

Pia Dandiya, Principal of Democracy Prep Endurance High School (DPEH), updated the Board on
goings-on at the school. Ms. Dandiya confirmed that all 59 of DPEH’s 59 seniors had been accepted
into at least one College or University and earnest conversations about which school is the best fit
for each of those scholars have begun. Ms. Dandiya elaborated, noting that this process included
College visits, prep for AP exams, finalization of Change the World Projects and the completion of
any remaining Regents Exams; all in all, a very busy but exciting time for seniors.

Ms. Dandiya continued by noting that all other grades were preparing for June Regents Exams with
Saturday and after-school tutoring. Ms. Dandiya noted a high focus on ELA, Geometry, Physics and
Chemistry Regents as those are the most difficult and the subjects in which she wanted to see the
most growth.

Fielding a question from Mr. Barnes regarding staff morale, Ms. Dandiya discussed staff
appreciation and recognition initiatives that have been heavy focus areas during the Spring;
traditionally the busiest time of year for staff.



Legal Update:

Kent Anker, Executive Vice President and Senior Counsel for DPPS, updated the Board on the
recent issue involving a staff member at Democracy Prep Endurance Middle School, the Board
having been previously appraised by email and phone calls. Mr. Anker noted the correction of the
initial New York Post story the following day and reiterated that; on the day school leadership
received the report from scholars, he was brought in to the CMO offices and later arrested by New
York City Police. The initial Post article claimed this was the accused staff member’s second arrest,
which was false. Mr. Anker explained that it would not be possible for a staff member to be arrested
in NYC for this type of offence, without the network staff being notified.

Mr. Anker noted that any interviews between scholars and law officers were accompanied by Social
Workers. He also noted that the Assistant District Attorney’s Office was keeping DPPS staff in the
loop and have been pleased with our cooperation.

Mr. Barnes stated that the school had the full support of the Board and was pleased with the staff’s
response on all fronts; family, legal and press. He further stated that DPE and DPPS should feel free

to reach out to the Board if they need any support.

Mr. Anker then briefly updated the Board on the status on an ongoing employee settlement
mediation, noting that mediation was still ongoing.

Network / Finance Update:
Andrew Stubbs, Interim CFO for DPPS, presented an updated financial plan for the DPPS network

of schools and the CMO, detailing aspects of staff structuring models and how the budgets would
ensure full payment of management fees. A discussion around the details of the plan ensued.

MOTION: Motion to apptrove the minutes from the board’s December 20%, 2018 regular and
special meetings.

Motion passed unanimonsly at 7:59 p.m.

MOTION: Motion to enter Executive Session.

Motion passed unanimonsly at 8:00 p.m.

MOTION: Motion to exit Executive Session.

Motion passed unanimonsly at 8:05 p.m.

MOTION: Motion to adjourn.

Motion passed unanimonsly at 8:05 p.m.
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Entry 10 Enroliment and Retention of Special

Populations
Created: 07/31/2019 -« Last updated: 08/01/2019

Instructions for Reporting Enrollment and Retention Strategies

Describe the efforts the charter school has made in 2018 19 toward meeting targets to attract and retain
enrollment of students with disabilities, English language learners/Multilingual learners, and students who
are economically disadvantaged. In addition, describe the school’s plans for meeting or making progress

toward meeting its enroliment and retention targets in 2019 20.

DEMOCRACY PREP ENDURANCE CHARTER SCHOOLSection Heading

Recruitment/Attraction Efforts Toward Meeting Targets

Econom
ically
Disadva
ntaged

Describe Recruitment Efforts in 2018 19

DPE is open to any child who is eligible under
the laws of the State of New York for
admission to a public school, and the school
ensures compliance with all applicable anti
discrimination laws governing public schools,
including Title VI of the Civil Rights Act and §
2854(2) of the New York Education Law,
governing admission to a charter school. DPE
used various outreach efforts in 2018 19 to
attract and retain students who are at risk of
academic failure and will continue to adopt
and implement new measures designed to
sustain its comparatively large proportion of
such students in 2019 20 and beyond.
Specifically, we contact guidance counselors,
in elementary, middle and high schools in
Community School Districts 4 and 5 in order
to identify high needs students who could
naturally feed into the school. Because a
reliance on data pervades all aspects of
DPE’s high expectations, high support
culture, we also depend on analytical tools to
inform recruitment decisions. With support
from network resources, our school is
informed on the neighborhood demographic
trends, application to acceptance conversion
rates, and previous year’s retention rates.
This equips canvassers with more targeted
walk lists and recruitment strategies.
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Describe Recruitment Plans in 2019 20

Moving forward, DPE will continue to
advertise open registration in January each
year. Interested families will meet with staff
and review the expectations of the school.
Canvassing staff will visit, with permission,
local elementary schools, after school
programs, and youth centers, organize
numerous open houses, attend school
enrollment fairs, canvass neighborhoods
door to door to further reach interested
families, mail applications to every eligible
family in Harlem, and post flyers and notices
in local newspapers, supermarkets, and
community centers.
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DPE contacts MLL instructors, coordinators,
managers, and leaders in the elementary,
middle, and high schools in Community
School Districts 4 and 5 in order to identify
high needs students who could naturally
feed into the school. The school directly
mails applications to all students in Upper
Manhattan and the Bronx and canvasses
each housing development in Upper
Manhattan in order to drop off enrollment
applications at each door irrespective of
whether a school aged student resides in
that apartment. Native Spanish speakers,
and in some cases French speakers,
accompany canvassing efforts to ensure that
Spanish and Francophone families are not
precluded from applying. Most printed
material also includes a Spanish version.

DPE contacts special education instructors,
coordinators, managers, and leaders in
elementary, middle, and high schools in
Community School District 4 and 5 in order
to identify high needs students who could
naturally feed into DPE. DPE does not collect
SPED or MLL data during the application
phase. Instead, authentic community
engagement works in tandem with data
metrics to form the crux of DPE’s enrollment
efforts. Through programming such as
summer family ice cream socials, our school
is able to establish a footprint in the
community we serve and develop
meaningful relationships with families by
providing opportunities for them to meet
principals and staff members in person to
discuss DPE’s special education services.

Retention Efforts Toward Meeting Targets

Econom

Describe Retention Efforts in 2018 19

Learning Support for DPE scholars comes
through multiple means, including: clear,
engaging, high quality lessons in the
classroom with low student to teacher ratios;
increased learning time relative to schools in
the surrounding district; pull out and push in
instruction by DPE’s Academic Collaboration
Team (ACT) members and related services

2/3

DPE will provide translation services, if
necessary, for all promotional materials (e.qg.,
billboards, public transportation
advertisements, and canvassing fliers) and
any person to person interaction requiring
English translation. The school will continue
to directly mail applications to all students in
Upper Manhattan and the Bronx and canvass
each housing development in Upper
Manhattan in order to drop off enrollment
applications at each door, particularly in
areas where a language other than English is
primarily spoken.

DPE strongly encourages a diverse
community of students and families and does
not discriminate against or limit the
admission of any student on any unlawful
basis including on the basis of disability or
intellectual ability. DPE will continue to
contact special education instructors,
coordinators, managers, and leaders in
elementary, middle, and high schools in
Community School Districts 4 and 5 in order
to identify high needs students who could
naturally feed into the school. DPE was
founded with the intent of recruiting and
serving an equal or higher proportion of
students with disabilities than the
surrounding district and will make a specific
effort to recruit into the lottery applicant pool
approximately 20% of students who have
disabilities.

Describe Retention Plans in 2019 20

DPE’s instructional model will continue to
incorporate supports for all students
struggling academically. All students falling
substantially below grade level in reading
and math regardless of classification will
receive increased attention through small
group instruction, individual tutoring, and
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such as counseling, speech, and
occupational and physical therapy for
students who require it; and mandatory
after school and Saturday program tutoring
for students who require additional individual
and small group attention, as determined by
assessment data regardless of Special
Education or multilingual learner
classification.

During the school year, the Academic
Collaboration Team (or ACT Team), teachers,
and leadership actively review the progress
of MLL students to ensure scholars are
supported to meet their goals. Teachers
meet with scholars’ families at the end of
each trimester to monitor the progress
towards their language development goals
alongside the overarching promotional
criteria. At the middle school level, this
criteria includes reading level, math
proficiency, number of classes passed, and
attendance rates; at the high school, this
criteria includes major courses being passed,
cumulative GPA, SAT scores, an attendance
rates.

During the school year, the Academic
Collaboration Team (or ACT Team), teachers,
ad leadership actively review the progress of
IEP students to ensure scholars are
supported to meet their goals. Outside of IEP
evaluations, teachers meet with scholars’
families at the mid and end points of each
trimester to monitor the progress towards
their IEP goals alongside the overarching
promotional criteria. At the middle school
level, this criteria includes reading level,
math proficiency, number of classes passed,
and attendance rates; at the high school,
this criteria includes major courses being
passed, cumulative GPA, SAT scores, and
attendance rates.

3/3

other intensive academic supports designed
to accelerate their academic growth. DPE
also will provide appropriate
accommodations to all students progressing
through the initial evaluation process prior to
confirmation that the student is disabled and
eligible for special education and related
services.

Armed with an awareness of students’
individualized learning plans, the ACT team,
teachers, and leadership will work with
scholars and families to ensure they are
aware of both their individual development
and progress towards promotion. The
NYSITELL test will be used to identify
students who are entitled to our Sheltered
English Instruction program for multilingual
learners.

Armed with an awareness of students’
individualized learning plans, the ACT team,
teachers, and leadership will work with
scholars and families to ensure they are
aware of both their individual development
and progress towards promotion. The upfront
and transparent communication will allow for
a richer academic dialogue around growth to
better support the retention of our highest
need students.
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Entry 11 Classroom Teacher and Administrator

Attrition

Report changes in teacher and administrator staffing.

Instructions for completing the Classroom Teacher and Administrator Attrition Tables

Charter schools must complete the tables titled 2018-2019 Classroom Teacher and

Administrator Attrition to report changes in teacher and administrator staffing
during the 2018-2019 school year. Please provide the full time equivalent (FTE) of
staff on June 30, 2018; the FTE for any departed staff from July 1, 2018 through June
30, 2019; the FTE for added staff from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019; and the
FTE of staff added in newly created positions from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019

using the tables provided.

1. Classroom Teacher Attrition Table

FTE Classroom FTE Classroom

Teachers on Teachers

6/30/18 Departed 7/1/18
6/30/19

53 22

2. Administrator Position Attrition Table

FTE FTE
Administrative Administrators
Positions on Departed 7/1/18
6/30/18 6/30/19

17 9

FTE Classroom
Teachers Filling
Vacant Positions
7/1/18 6/30/19

20

FTE
Administrators
Filling Vacant
Positions 7/1/18
6/30/19

1/2

FTE Classroom

Teachers Added
in New Positions
7/1/18 6/30/19

2

FTE
Administrators
Added in New
Positions 7/1/18
6/30/19

2

FTE of
Classroom
Teachers on
6/3019

54

FTE
Administrative
Positions on
6/30/19

15



3. Tell your school's story

Charter schools may provide additional information in this section of the Annual
Report about their respective teacher and administrator attrition rates as some
teacher or administrator departures do not reflect advancement or movement within
the charter school networks. Schools may provide additional detail to reflect a
teacher’s advancement up the ladder to a leadership position within the network or

an administrator’s movement to lead a new network charter school.

(No response)

4. Charter schools must ensure that all prospective employees receive clearance
through the NYSED Office of School Personnel Review and Accountability (OSPRA)
prior to employment. After an employee has been cleared, schools are required to

maintain proof of such clearance in the file of each employee. For the safety of all
students, charter schools must take immediate steps to terminate the employment of
individuals who have been denied clearance. Once the employees have been
terminated, the school must terminate the request for clearance in the TEACH
system.

Have all employees have been cleared through the NYSED TEACH system?

Yes

5. For perspective or current employees whose clearance has been denied, have you
terminated their employment and removed them from the TEACH system?

Not Applicable

Thank you

2/2



ﬁ Entry 12 Uncertified Teachers

Instructions for Reporting Percent of Uncertified Teachers

The table below is reflective of the information collected through the online portal for
compliance with New York State Education Law 2854(3)(a-1) for teaching staff
qualifications. Enter the relevant full time equivalent (FTE) count of teachers in each
column. For example, a school with 20 full time teachers and 5 half time teachers
would have an FTE count of 22.5. If more than one column applies to a particular
teacher, please select one column for the FTE count. Please do not include
paraprofessionals, such as teacher assistants.

FTE count of uncertified teachers on 6/30/18, and each uncertified teacher should be
counted only once.
FTE Count
1. Total FTE count of uncertified teachers (6 30 19) 20

2. FTE count of uncertified teachers with at least three years
of elementary, middle or secondary classroom teaching 4
experience (6 30 19)

3. FTE count of uncertified teachers who are tenured or
tenure track college faculty (6 30 19)

4. FTE count of uncertified teachers with two years of Teach
for America experience (6 30 19)

5. FTE count of uncertified teachers with exceptional
business, professional, artistic, athletic, or military 0
experience (6 30 19)

6. FTE count of uncertified teachers who do not fit into any
of the prior four categories (6 30 19)

FTE Count of All Uncertified 20
Teachers as of 6/30/19

FTE Count of All Certified 33
Teachers as of 6/30/19

Thank you.

1/1
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To download a PDF version of this calendar, click the link here

2019 2020 JuLy AUGUST SEPTEMBER
Event EI Event Dates S M T w H F S M T w H F S S M T w H F
Summer PD 8/5 8/30 Mid Year PD 172 113 2 3 4 5 6
New Teacher PD 8/5 8/9 DPNY Town Hall 13 9 0 11 12 13
August Regents Exams 8/13 8/14 NYC Chaperone Summit 1710 16 17 18 19 20
NY Network PD 8/16 NY Network PD 8/16 23 24 25 26 27
Prep Academy Window 8/19 8/30 MLK Day 1/20 30
Labor Day 9/2 January Regents Exams 1/21 1/24
First Day of School 9/3 MS State ELA Practice Exam 1724
ES Diagnostic Window 9/9 9/13 MS State ELA Practice Exam 124
STEP Round One 9/16 9/27 HS Midterms T2 1729 1/30 OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER
NY Network PD 8/16 MS State Math Practice Exam 1/31 S M T w H F S M T w H F S S M T w H F
T1 Doctor Day 10/4 MS State Math Practice Exam 131 1 2 3 4 - 2 3 4 5 6
Columbus Day 10/14 ES Practice Test #2 w3 27 7 8 9 10 1 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 1 12 [El
HS Midterms T1 10117 1018 T2 Doctor Day 214 14 15 16 17 18 n 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20
DPNY Town Hall One 10/25 February Break 217 221 21 22 23 24 25 8 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27
Halloween: Half Day Schedule 10/31 STEP Round Three 224 3/6 28 29 30 3 25 26 27 28 29 30 31
DP YOU 1N NY Network PD 8/16
Veterans Day 1/ T2 Course Cradebook Lock 317
STEP Round Two 1M/11 11/22 T2 HS Exams 3/18 3/20 JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH
NY Network PD 8/16 T2 MS Exams 3/18 3/20 S M T w H F S M T w H F S S M T w H F
Thanksgiving Break 1127 11/29 T2 Ends 3/20 1 - 2 3 4 5 6
ES Practice Test #1 1212 12/6 T3 Begins 3/23 6 7 8 9 10 3 4 b 6 7 9 0 11 12 13
T1 Course Gradebook Lock 12/3 NY State Online ELA Exam Window  3/24 3/31 13 14 15 16 17 0 N 12 13 14 16 17 18 19 20
T1 MS Exams 12/4 12/6 T2 Exam Gradebook Lock 3/25 20 21 22 23 24 17 18 19 20 21 23 24 25 26 27
T1 HS Exams 12/4 12/6 T2 Family Conference Window 3/30 4/2 27 28 29 30 31 24 25 26 27 28 30 31
T1 Ends 12/6 T2 Data Day
T2 Begins 12/9 Spring Break 4/13 417
T1 Exam Gradebook Lock 12/ NY State Online Math Exam Window 4/20 4/27
T1 Data Day 12113 NY Network PD 8/16 APRIL MAY JUNE
T1 Family Conference Window 12/17 12/19 AP Exam Window 5/4 515 S M T W H F S M T W H F S S M T w H F
Winter Break 12/23 11 HS Midterms T3 5/7 5/8 1 2 - 1 1 2 3 4 5
Korean Street Festival 5/9 6 7 8 9 10 4 5 6 7 9 0 n 12
DPNY Town Hall Two 5/15 13 14 15 16 17 m o12 13 14 15 15 16 17 18 19
4th/8th Science Exam (Perf Test) 5/18 20 21 22 23 24 8 19 20 21 22 22 23 24 25 26
T3 Doctor Day 5/22 27 28 29 30 25 26 27 28 29
Memorial Day 5/25
ES Summative Window 5/25 5/29
Ath/8th Science Grading (Perf. Test) 5/29 JULY Legend
4th/8th Science Exam (Written) S M T w H F Full Day PD
STEP Round Four Shortened Day PD| 14
US History Regents Holiday/Vacation| 14
4th/8th Science Grading (Written) Start/End of Term | 14
T3 Course Gradbook Lock Other Non-instructional
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The calendar shown below should exactly match the Google Calendar entitled ‘NY Regional Calendar'. Note ES Assessments are currently not displayed on this calendar and will be \\ﬂ DU B L I C SC H O O LS

added when the 2019 2020 ES Assessment Strategy is finalized
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